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                         PART I. - FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
ITEM 1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
                          CREDIT ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION 
                         CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)           THREE MONTHS ENDED 
                                                             MARCH 31, 
                                                  ---------------------------- 
                                                      2007             2006 
                                                  ------------    ------------ 
                                                             
REVENUE: 
   Finance charges                                $     51,413    $     46,007 
   License fees                                             82           2,897 
   Other income                                          5,856           4,122 
                                                  ------------    ------------ 
       Total revenue                                    57,351          53,026 
                                                  ------------    ------------ 
 
COSTS AND EXPENSES: 
   Salaries and wages                                   11,861          10,594 
   General and administrative                            5,967           6,765 
   Sales and marketing                                   4,472           4,359 
   Provision for credit losses                           3,873             524 
   Interest                                              8,471           3,574 
   Other expense                                            25              82 
                                                  ------------    ------------ 
       Total costs and expenses                         34,669          25,898 
                                                  ------------    ------------ 
Operating income                                        22,682          27,128 
   Foreign currency gain                                     4               5 
                                                  ------------    ------------ 
Income from continuing operations before 
     provision for income taxes                         22,686          27,133 
   Provision for income taxes                            7,299           9,928 
                                                  ------------    ------------ 
Income from continuing operations                       15,387          17,205 
                                                  ------------    ------------ 
 
Discontinued operations 
   Loss from discontinued United 
      Kingdom operations                                   (38)            (13) 
   Credit for income taxes                                 (11)             (5) 
                                                  ------------    ------------ 
   Loss on discontinued operations                         (27)             (8) 
                                                  ------------    ------------ 
Net income                                        $     15,360    $     17,197 
                                                  ============    ============ 
 
Net income per common share: 
   Basic                                          $       0.51    $       0.48 
                                                  ============    ============ 
   Diluted                                        $       0.49    $       0.45 
                                                  ============    ============ 
 
Income from continuing operations 
   per common share: 
   Basic                                          $       0.51    $       0.48 
                                                  ============    ============ 
   Diluted                                        $       0.49    $       0.45 
                                                  ============    ============ 
 
Loss from discontinued operations 
   per common share: 
   Basic                                          $      (0.00)   $      (0.00) 
                                                  ============    ============ 
   Diluted                                        $      (0.00)   $      (0.00) 
                                                  ============    ============ 
 
Weighted average shares outstanding: 
   Basic                                            30,054,349      36,146,994 
   Diluted                                          31,283,695      38,609,257 



 
 
          See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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                          CREDIT ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION 
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
 
 
 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)                    AS OF 
                                                        ------------------------ 
                                                         MARCH 31,   DECEMBER 31, 
                                                           2007          2006 
                                                        (UNAUDITED) 
                                                        -----------  ----------- 
                                                                
                                    ASSETS: 
 
   Cash and cash equivalents                             $     299    $   8,528 
   Restricted cash and cash equivalents                     54,302       45,609 
   Restricted securities available for sale                  3,878        3,564 
 
   Loans receivable (including $18,886 and $23,038 
    from affiliates as of March 31, 2007 and 
    December 31, 2006, respectively)                       835,850      754,571 
   Allowance for credit losses                            (128,249)    (128,791) 
                                                         ---------    --------- 
       Loans receivable, net                               707,601      625,780 
                                                         ---------    --------- 
 
   Property and equipment, net                              16,402       16,203 
   Income taxes receivable                                  14,925       11,734 
   Other assets                                             15,464       13,795 
                                                         ---------    --------- 
       Total Assets                                      $ 812,871    $ 725,213 
                                                         =========    ========= 
 
                     LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
 
LIABILITIES: 
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities              $  84,075    $  78,294 
   Line of credit                                           36,900       38,400 
   Secured financing                                       401,797      345,144 
   Mortgage note and capital lease obligations               8,301        8,631 
   Deferred income taxes, net                               54,941       44,397 
                                                         ---------    --------- 
       Total Liabilities                                   586,014      514,866 
                                                         ---------    --------- 
 
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
   Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 1,000,000 
     shares authorized, none issued                             --           -- 
   Common stock, $.01 par value, 80,000,000 shares 
    authorized, 30,291,517 and 30,179,959 shares 
    issued and outstanding as of March 31, 2007 and 
    December 31, 2006, respectively                            303          302 
   Paid-in capital                                           2,055          828 
   Retained earnings                                       224,524      209,253 
   Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax of 
    $14 and $19 at March 31, 2007 and 
    December 31, 2006, respectively                            (25)         (36) 
                                                         ---------    --------- 
       Total Shareholders' Equity                          226,857      210,347 
                                                         ---------    --------- 
       Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity        $ 812,871    $ 725,213 
                                                         =========    ========= 
 
 
          See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
 
                                       2 



 
 
                          CREDIT ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION 
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
 
 
(Dollars in thousands)                                 THREE MONTHS ENDED 
                                                            MARCH 31, 
                                                     ---------------------- 
                                                       2007         2006 
                                                     ---------    --------- 
                                                             
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
   Net income                                        $  15,360    $  17,197 
   Adjustments to reconcile cash provided by 
    operating activities: 
     Provision for credit losses                         3,873          524 
     Depreciation                                        1,048        1,270 
     Loss on retirement of property and equipment           66           38 
     Provision for deferred income taxes                10,544        5,821 
     Stock-based compensation                              437         (158) 
   Change in operating assets and liabilities: 
     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities            5,692        6,163 
     Income taxes receivable                            (2,732)       3,291 
     Other assets                                       (1,527)      (1,069) 
                                                     ---------    --------- 
        Net cash provided by operating activities       32,761       33,077 
                                                     ---------    --------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
   Increase in restricted cash and cash 
    equivalents                                         (8,693)      (2,190) 
   Purchases of restricted securities available 
    for sale                                              (504)        (198) 
   Proceeds from sale of restricted securities 
    available for sale                                      --          148 
   Maturities of restricted securities available 
    for sale                                               201           -- 
   Principal collected on loans receivable             160,972      147,788 
   Advances to dealers and accelerated payments 
    of dealer holdback                                (212,052)    (156,646) 
   Purchases of consumer loans                         (14,124)      (3,335) 
   Payments of dealer holdback                         (20,620)     (17,644) 
   Net change in floorplan receivables, notes 
    receivable and lines of credit                          --        1,746 
   Purchases of property and equipment                  (1,262)        (391) 
                                                     ---------    --------- 
        Net cash used in investing activities          (96,082)     (30,722) 
                                                     ---------    --------- 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
   Borrowings under line of credit                     156,900      103,630 
   Repayments under line of credit                    (158,400)     (38,000) 
   Proceeds from secured financing                     155,500       75,000 
   Repayments of secured financing                     (98,847)     (44,000) 
   Principal payments under mortgage note 
    and capital lease obligations                         (381)        (368) 
   Repurchase of common stock                               --     (104,862) 
   Proceeds from stock options exercised                   332        1,072 
                                                     ---------    --------- 
     Net cash provided by (used in) financing 
      activities                                        55,104       (7,528) 
                                                     ---------    --------- 
     Effect of exchange rate changes on cash               (12)           3 
                                                     ---------    --------- 
   Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents            (8,229)      (5,170) 
   Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period        8,528        7,090 
                                                     ---------    --------- 
   Cash and cash equivalents, end of period          $     299    $   1,920 
                                                     =========    ========= 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION: 
   Cash paid during the period for interest          $   7,991    $   2,915 
   Cash paid during the period for income taxes            332          763 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS: 
   Property and equipment acquired through capital 
    lease obligations                                $      51    $      -- 



   Issuance of restricted stock, net of forfeitures  $       1    $       1 
 
 
          See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
1.   BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
     The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America ("generally accepted accounting principles" or "GAAP") 
for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and 
Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the 
information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting principles 
for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments 
(consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair 
presentation have been included. The results of operations for interim periods 
are not necessarily indicative of actual results achieved for full fiscal years. 
The consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2006 has been derived from the 
audited financial statements at that date but does not include all the 
information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting principles 
for complete financial statements. For further information, refer to the 
consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 for Credit Acceptance 
Corporation (the "Company" or "Credit Acceptance"). Certain prior period amounts 
have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation. 
 
     The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in 
the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 
 
 
2.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 
 
     Since 1972, Credit Acceptance has provided auto loans to consumers, 
regardless of their credit history. The Company's product is offered through a 
nationwide network of automobile dealers who benefit from sales of vehicles to 
consumers who otherwise could not obtain financing; from repeat and referral 
sales generated by these same customers; and from sales to customers responding 
to advertisements for the Company's product, but who actually end up qualifying 
for traditional financing. 
 
     Without the Company's product, consumers are often unable to purchase a 
vehicle or they purchase an unreliable one and are not provided the opportunity 
to improve their credit standing. As the Company reports to the three national 
credit reporting agencies, a significant number of its consumers improve their 
lives by improving their credit score and move on to more traditional sources of 
financing. 
 
     Credit Acceptance was founded to collect retail installment contracts 
(referred to as "Consumer Loans") originated by automobile dealerships owned by 
the Company's founder, majority shareholder, and current Chairman, Donald Foss. 
During the 1980s, the Company began to market this service to non-affiliated 
dealers and, at the same time, began to offer dealers a non-recourse cash 
payment (referred to as an "advance") against anticipated future collections on 
Consumer Loans serviced for that dealer. Today, the Company's program is offered 
to dealers throughout the United States. The Company refers to dealers who 
participate in its program and who share its commitment to changing consumers' 
lives as "dealer-partners". 
 
     A consumer who does not qualify for conventional automobile financing can 
purchase a used vehicle from a Credit Acceptance dealer-partner and finance the 
purchase through the Company. As payment for the vehicle, the dealer-partner 
receives the following: 
 
     (i)   a down payment from the consumer; 
 
     (ii)  a cash advance from the Company; and 
 
     (iii) after the advance has been recovered by the Company, the cash from 
           payments made on the Consumer Loan, net of certain collection costs 
           and the Company's servicing fee ("dealer holdback"). 
 
     The Company's servicing fee is equal to a fixed percentage (typically 20%) 
of each payment collected. In addition, the Company receives fees for other 
products and services provided in connection with Consumer Loans. 
 
     If the Company discovers a misrepresentation by the dealer-partner relating 



to a Consumer Loan assigned to the Company, the Company can demand that the 
Consumer Loan be repurchased for the current balance of the Consumer Loan less 
the amount of any unearned finance charge plus the applicable termination fee, 
which is generally $500. Upon receipt of such amount in full, the Company will 
reassign the Consumer Loan and its security interest in the financed vehicle to 
the dealer-partner. The dealer-partner can also opt to repurchase Consumer Loans 
at their own discretion. 
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            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
2.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED) 
 
     The Company is an indirect lender from a legal perspective, meaning the 
Consumer Loan is originated by the dealer-partner and immediately assigned to 
the Company. Typically, the compensation paid to the dealer-partner in exchange 
for the Consumer Loan is paid in two parts. A portion of the compensation is 
paid at the time of origination, and a portion is paid over time. The amount 
paid at the time of origination is called an advance; the portion paid over time 
is based on the performance of the loan and is called dealer holdback. 
 
     For accounting purposes, the transactions described above are not 
considered to be loans to consumers. Instead, the Company's accounting reflects 
that of a lender to the dealer-partner. This classification for accounting 
purposes is primarily a result of (i) the dealer-partner's financial interest in 
the Consumer Loan and (ii) certain elements of the Company's legal relationship 
with the dealer-partner. The cash amount advanced to the dealer-partner (the 
"Dealer Loan") is recorded as an asset on the Company's balance sheet. The 
aggregate amount of all advances to an individual dealer-partner, plus accrued 
income, less repayments comprises the amount recorded in Loans receivable. 
 
     A small percentage of Consumer Loans in the United States are assigned to 
the Company in exchange for a single payment. Because the dealer-partner does 
not retain a financial interest in loans acquired in this manner, these loans 
are considered to be purchased loans ("Purchased Loans") for accounting 
purposes. 
 
     The Company is organized into two primary business segments: United States 
and Other. The Other segment consists of a number of discontinued businesses 
including a United Kingdom automobile financing business, an automobile leasing 
business, a Canadian automobile financing business, and a business offering 
secured lines of credit and floorplan financing products. As of March 31, 2007, 
substantially all of the Company's capital was invested in the United States 
business segment. 
 
     The Company's business is seasonal with peak Consumer Loan acceptances 
occurring during the first quarter of the year. However, this seasonality does 
not have a material impact on the Company's interim results. 
 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
     Finance Charges. The Company recognizes finance charge income in a manner 
consistent with the provisions of the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountant's Statement of Position ("SOP") 03-3 "Accounting for Certain Loans or 
Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer." SOP 03-3 requires the Company to 
recognize finance charges under the interest method such that revenue is 
recognized on a level-yield basis based upon forecasted cash flows. As the 
forecasted cash flows change, the Company adjusts the yield upwards for positive 
changes and recognizes impairment for negative changes in the current period. 
 
     Buyers Vehicle Protection Plan, Inc. ("BVPP"), a wholly owned subsidiary of 
the Company, has relationships with third party vehicle service contract 
administrators ("TPAs") whereby the TPAs process claims on vehicle service 
contracts underwritten by third party insurers. BVPP receives a commission for 
all such vehicle service contracts sold by its dealer-partners where the vehicle 
service contract is financed by the Company, and does not bear any risk of loss 
for claims covered on these third party service contracts. The commission is 
included in the purchase price of the vehicle service contract included in the 
Consumer Loan. The Company advances to dealer-partners an amount based on the 
purchase price of the vehicle service contract on Consumer Loans accepted by the 
Company that include vehicle service contracts. The Company recognizes the 
commission received from the TPAs for contracts financed by the Company as part 
of finance charges on a level-yield basis based upon forecasted cash flows. 
Commissions on contracts not financed by the Company are recognized as finance 
charge income at the time the commissions are received. The Company's agreements 
with two of its TPA's allow the Company to receive profit sharing payments 
depending upon the performance of the vehicle service contract programs. Profit 
sharing payments are received once a year, if eligible. Profit sharing payments 
are not estimable and therefore revenue related to these payments is recognized 
in the period the payments are received. 
 
     BVPP allows dealer-partners to offer a Guaranteed Asset Protection ("GAP") 
product to consumers that is underwritten by a third party. GAP provides the 
consumer protection by paying the difference between the loan balance and the 
consumer's insurance coverage in the event the vehicle is totaled or stolen. The 
dealer-partner typically includes the purchase price of GAP in the Consumer 



Loan. The Company receives a fee for every GAP product sold by its 
dealer-partners. The Company advances to dealer-partners an amount based on the 
purchase price of the GAP product on Consumer Loans accepted by the Company that 
include GAP. The Company recognizes the fee as part of finance charges on a 
level-yield basis based upon forecasted cash flows. The Company is eligible to 
receive profit sharing payments depending on the performance of the GAP products 
sold. Profit sharing payments from the third party are received once a year, if 
eligible. Profit sharing payments are not estimable and therefore revenue 
related to these payments is recognized in the period the payments are 
received. 
 
                                       5 



 
 
            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
2.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONCLUDED) 
 
     The Company charges dealer-partners a per month license fee for access to 
its patented internet-based Credit Approval Processing System ("CAPS"). In 
accordance with GAAP, this fee has historically been recorded as revenue in the 
month the fee is charged. Based on feedback received from field sales personnel 
and dealer-partners, the Company concluded that the way this fee was charged was 
a significant factor driving higher than desired dealer-partner attrition. 
Effective January 1, 2007, the Company implemented a change designed to 
positively impact dealer-partner attrition. The Company will continue to charge 
a monthly fee of $599 but, instead of collecting the license fee in the current 
period, the Company will collect the license fee from future dealer holdback 
payments and recognize it as finance charges over the life of the Dealer Loans. 
 
     Loans Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses. The Company records the 
amount advanced to the dealer-partner as a Dealer Loan. The Dealer Loan is 
increased as revenue is recognized and decreased as collections are received. 
The Company follows an approach similar to the provisions of SOP 03-3 in 
determining its allowance for credit losses. Consistent with SOP 03-3, an 
allowance for credit losses is maintained at an amount that reduces the net 
asset value (Dealer Loan balance less the allowance) to the value of forecasted 
future cash flows discounted at the yield established at the inception of the 
Dealer Loan. This allowance is calculated on a dealer-partner by dealer-partner 
basis. The discounted value of future cash flows is comprised of estimated 
future collections on the Consumer Loans, less any estimated dealer holdback 
payments. The Company writes off Dealer Loans once there are no forecasted 
future collections on any of the associated Consumer Loans. 
 
     In estimating future collections and dealer holdback payments for each 
dealer-partner, the Company considers: (i) a dealer-partner's actual collection 
data on a static pool basis and (ii) the Company's historical collection 
experience. The Company's collection forecast for each dealer-partner is updated 
monthly and considers the most recent static pool data available for each 
dealer-partner and the Company's entire portfolio of Consumer Loans. 
 
     Cash flows from any individual Dealer Loan are often different than 
estimated cash flows at Dealer Loan inception. If such difference is favorable, 
the difference is recognized into income over the remaining life of the Dealer 
Loan through a yield adjustment. If such difference is unfavorable, an allowance 
for credit losses is established and a corresponding provision for credit losses 
is recorded as a current period expense. Because differences between estimated 
cash flows at inception and actual cash flows occur often, an allowance is 
required for a significant portion of the Company's Dealer Loan portfolio. An 
allowance for credit losses does not necessarily indicate that a Dealer Loan is 
unprofitable, and in recent years, very seldom are cash flows from a Dealer Loan 
insufficient to repay the initial amounts advanced to the dealer-partner. 
 
NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
     In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for 
Uncertainty in Income Taxes - An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" ("FIN 
48"). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized 
in an entity's financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, 
"Accounting for Income Taxes" and prescribes a recognition threshold and 
measurement attributes for financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken 
or expected to be taken on a tax return. Under FIN 48, the impact of an 
uncertain income tax position on the income tax return must be recognized at the 
largest amount that is more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon audit by the 
relevant taxing authority. An uncertain income tax position will not be 
recognized if it has less than a 50% likelihood of being sustained. 
Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on derecognition, classification, 
interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and 
transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2006. The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. The 
cumulative effect of implementation of FIN 48 was approximately a $0.1 million 
increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which was accounted for 
as a decrease in the January 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings. 
 
     In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities" ("SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 permits 
entities to choose to measure financial assets and liabilities (except for those 
that are specifically exempted from the Statement) at fair value. The election 
to measure a financial asset or liability at fair value can be made on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis and is irrevocable. The difference between 
carrying value and fair value at the election date is recorded as a transition 



adjustment to opening retained earnings. Subsequent changes in fair value are 
recognized in earnings. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
November 15, 2007. The Company is not yet able to quantify the impact of SFAS 
159, if adopted, on the Company's consolidated financial statements. 
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            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
3.   LOANS RECEIVABLE 
 
A summary of changes in Loans receivable is as follows (in thousands): 
 
 
 
                                      THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2007 
                              ------------------------------------------------- 
                                DEALER      PURCHASED       OTHER 
                                LOANS         LOANS         LOANS       TOTAL 
                              ----------   ------------    --------   --------- 
                                                           
Balance, beginning of period  $  724,093   $     29,926    $    552   $ 754,571 
New loans (1)                    212,052         14,124          --     226,176 
Dealer holdback payments          20,620             --          --      20,620 
Net cash collections on loans    154,634)        (6,741)         --    (161,375) 
Write-offs                        (4,155)          (150)         --      (4,305) 
Recoveries                            --             12          --          12 
Net change in floorplan 
 receivables, notes 
 receivable, and lines of             --             --          46          46 
credit 
Other                                 --             --          93          93 
Currency translation                  12             --          --          12 
                              ----------   ------------    --------   --------- 
Balance, end of period        $  797,988   $     37,171    $    691   $ 835,850 
                              ==========   ============    ========   ========= 
 
 
 
 
 
                                      THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2006 
                              ------------------------------------------------ 
                                DEALER      PURCHASED      OTHER 
                                LOANS         LOANS        LOANS       TOTAL 
                              ----------   ------------   --------   --------- 
                                                          
Balance, beginning of period  $  675,692   $     16,486   $   2,761   $ 694,939 
New loans (1)                    156,646          3,335          --     159,981 
Dealer holdback payments          17,644             --          --      17,644 
Net cash collections on loans   (145,501)        (2,848)         --    (148,349) 
Write-offs                        (1,255)           (62)         --      (1,317) 
Recoveries                            --             36          --          36 
Net change in floorplan 
 receivables, notes 
  receivable, and lines of            --             --      (1,711)     (1,711) 
  credit 
Other                                 --             --         161         161 
Currency translation                  (3)            --          --          (3) 
                              ----------   ------------   ---------   --------- 
Balance, end of period        $  703,223   $     16,947   $   1,211   $ 721,381 
                              ==========   ============   =========   ========= 
 
 
 
A summary of changes in the Allowance for credit losses is as follows (in 
thousands): 
 
 
 
                                      THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2007 
                              ------------------------------------------------ 
                                DEALER      PURCHASED      OTHER 
                                LOANS         LOANS        LOANS       TOTAL 
                              ----------   ------------   --------   --------- 
                                                          
Balance, beginning of period  $  127,881   $       910    $     --   $  128,791 
Provision for credit 
 losses (2)                        3,451           286          --        3,737 
Write-offs                        (4,155)         (150)         --       (4,305) 
Recoveries                            --            12          --           12 
Currency translation                  14            --          --           14 
                              ----------   -----------    --------   ---------- 
Balance, end of period        $  127,191   $     1,058    $     --   $  128,249 



                              ==========   ===========    ========   ========== 
 
 
 
 
 
                                      THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2006 
                              ------------------------------------------------- 
                                DEALER      PURCHASED       OTHER 
                                LOANS         LOANS         LOANS       TOTAL 
                              ----------   ------------    --------   --------- 
                                                           
Balance, beginning of period  $  130,722   $        689    $    --    $131,411 
Provision for credit 
 losses (3)                           78            408         --         486 
Write-offs                        (1,255)           (62)        --      (1,317) 
Recoveries                            --             36         --          36 
Currency translation                  (2)            --         --          (2) 
                              ----------   ------------    -------    --------- 
Balance, end of period        $  129,543   $      1,071    $    --    $130,614 
                              ==========   ============    =======    ========= 
 
 
(1)  New Dealer Loans includes advances to dealer-partners and accelerated 
     payments of dealer holdback. 
 
(2)  Does not include a provision for credit losses of $136 related to other 
     items. 
 
(3)  Does not include a provision for credit losses of $38 on license fees 
     receivable and other items. 
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            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
4.   DEBT 
 
     The Company and its subsidiaries currently utilize four primary sources of 
debt financing: (i) a revolving secured line of credit with a commercial bank 
syndicate; (ii) a revolving secured warehouse facility with institutional 
investors; (iii) Rule 144A asset backed secured borrowings with qualified 
institutional investors; and (iv) a residual credit facility. General 
information for each of the outstanding financing transactions is as follows 
(dollars in thousands): 
 
 
 
                     ISSUE            MATURITY  FINANCING INTEREST RATE AT 
      FINANCINGS    NUMBER CLOSE DATE   DATE      AMOUNT   MARCH 31, 2007 
- ------------------- ------ ---------- --------- --------- ---------------- 
                                            
Revolving Line of   n/a    February   June 20,  $135,000  Either Eurodollar 
Credit                     7, 2006    2008                rate plus 130 basisthe 
                                                          prime points (6.61%) 
                                                          or rate (8.25%) 
 
Revolving Secured   2003-2 February   February  $325,000  Commercial paper rate 
Warehouse Facility*        14, 2007   13, 2008            plus 65 basis points 
                                                          (6.00%) 
 
Term ABS 144A       2006-1 April 18,  n/a**     $100,000  Fixed rate (5.36%) 
2006-1*                    2006 
 
Term ABS 144A       2006-2 November   n/a***    $100,000  Fixed rate (5.38%) 
2006-2*                    21, 2006 
 
Residual Credit     2006-3 September  September $ 50,000  LIBOR or the 
Facility*                  20, 2006   19, 2007            commercial paper rate 
                                                          plus 145 basis points 
                                                          (6.79%) 
 
 
 
*    Financing made available only to a specified subsidiary of the Company. 
 
**   The total expected term of this facility is 15 months. 
 
***  The total expected term of this facility is 22 months. 
 
Additional information related to the amounts outstanding on each facility is as 
follows (dollars in thousands): 
 
 
 
                                                      FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED 
                                                              MARCH 31, 
                                                      -------------------------- 
                                                        2007            2006 
                                                      ---------       --------- 
                                                                 
REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT 
    Maximum outstanding balance                       $  63,100       $ 101,900 
    Weighted average outstanding balance                 42,300          58,600 
 
REVOLVING SECURED WAREHOUSE FACILITY 
    Maximum outstanding balance                       $ 264,000       $ 150,500 
    Weighted average outstanding balance                216,500         111,000 
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            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
4.   DEBT - (CONTINUED) 
 
 
 
                                          AS OF MARCH 31,      AS OF DECEMBER 31, 
                                               2007                   2006 
                                          ---------------      ----------------- 
                                                          
REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT 
   Balance outstanding                    $        36,900      $          38,400 
   Letter(s) of credit                                400                    900 
   Amount available for borrowing (1)              97,700                 95,740 
   Interest rate                                     6.61%                  7.06% 
 
REVOLVING SECURED WAREHOUSE FACILITY 
   Balance outstanding                    $       264,000      $         171,000 
   Amount available for borrowing                  61,000                154,000 
   Contributed Dealer Loans                       367,150                249,247 
   Interest rate                                     6.00%                  6.00% 
 
TERM ABS 144A 2006-1 
   Balance outstanding                    $        37,797               $ 74,144 
   Contributed Dealer Loans                        93,178                115,664 
   Interest rate                                     5.36%                  5.36% 
 
TERM ABS 144A 2006-2 
   Balance outstanding                    $       100,000      $         100,000 
   Contributed Dealer Loans                       125,076                125,178 
   Interest rate                                     5.38%                  5.38% 
 
RESIDUAL CREDIT FACILITY 
   Balance outstanding                    $            --      $              -- 
   Contributed Dealer Loans                            --                     -- 
   Interest rate                                     6.79%                  6.80% 
 
 
 
(1)  Represents amount available under terms of the agreement. As of March 31, 
     2007, the borrowing base limitation restricts the Company's borrowing 
     ability under the line of credit to $90.9 million. Due to this borrowing 
     base restriction, the amount available for borrowing was $53.6 million as 
     of March 31, 2007. 
 
LINE OF CREDIT FACILITY 
 
     Borrowings under the credit agreement are subject to a borrowing base 
limitation equal to 75% of the net book value of Dealer Loans plus 75% of the 
net book value of Consumer Loans purchased by the Company, less a hedging 
reserve (not exceeding $1.0 million), the amount of letters of credit issued 
under the line of credit, and the amount of other debt secured by the collateral 
which secures the line of credit. Borrowings under the credit agreement are 
secured by a lien on most of the Company's assets. The Company must pay annual 
and quarterly fees on the amount of the commitment. 
 
SECURED FINANCING 
 
     The Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, CAC Warehouse Funding Corp. II 
("Warehouse Funding" or "2003-2"), has a revolving secured financing facility 
with institutional investors. Under the facility, Warehouse Funding may receive 
80% of the net book value of the contributed Dealer Loans in financing when the 
Company conveys Dealer Loans to Warehouse Funding for cash and equity in 
Warehouse Funding. Warehouse Funding will in turn pledge the Dealer Loans as 
collateral to the institutional investors to secure loans that will fund the 
cash portion of the purchase price of the Dealer Loans. In addition to the 
maturity of the facility, there is a requirement that certain amounts 
outstanding under the facility be refinanced within 360 days of the most recent 
renewal. This financing occurred on April 12, 2007. If the refinancing had not 
occurred the transaction would have ceased to revolve, would amortize as 
collections were received and, at the option of the institutional investors, 
would have been subject to acceleration and foreclosure. Although Warehouse 
Funding will be liable for any secured financing under the facility, the 
financing is non-recourse to the Company, even though Warehouse Funding and the 
Company are consolidated for financial reporting purposes. 
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            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
4.   DEBT - (CONTINUED) 
 
     As Warehouse Funding is organized as a separate legal entity from the 
Company, assets of Warehouse Funding (including the conveyed Dealer Loans) will 
not be available to satisfy the general obligations of the Company. All the 
assets of Warehouse Funding have been encumbered to secure Warehouse Funding's 
obligations to its creditors. Interest has been limited to a maximum rate of 
6.75% through interest rate cap agreements executed in the first quarter of 
2007. The Company receives a monthly servicing fee paid out of collections equal 
to 6% of the collections received with respect to the conveyed Dealer Loans. 
Except for the servicing fee and payments due to dealer-partners, the Company 
does not have any rights in any portion of such collections. 
 
     The Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Credit Acceptance Funding LLC 2006-1 
("Funding 2006-1"), completed a secured financing transaction in which Funding 
2006-1 received $100.0 million in financing. In connection with this 
transaction, the Company conveyed, for cash and the sole membership interest in 
Funding 2006-1, Dealer Loans having a net book value of approximately $133.5 
million to Funding 2006-1, which, in turn, conveyed the Dealer Loans to a trust 
that issued $100.0 million in notes to qualified institutional investors. A 
primary and backup financial insurance policy has been issued in connection with 
the transaction. The policies guarantee the timely payment of interest and 
ultimate repayment of principal on the final scheduled distribution date. The 
notes were rated "Aaa" by Moody's Investor Services and "AAA" by Standard & 
Poor's Rating Services. The proceeds of the initial conveyance to Funding 2006-1 
were used by the Company to purchase Dealer Loans, on an arm's-length basis, 
from Warehouse Funding. Through October 16, 2006, the Company conveyed 
additional Dealer Loans to Funding 2006-1, which were then conveyed by Funding 
2006-1 to the trust. After October 16, 2006, the debt outstanding under this 
facility began to amortize. The secured financing creates loans for which the 
trust is liable and which are secured by all the assets of the trust. Such loans 
are non-recourse to the Company, even though the trust, Funding 2006-1 and the 
Company are consolidated for financial reporting purposes. As Funding 2006-1 is 
organized as a separate legal entity from the Company, assets of Funding 2006-1 
(including the conveyed Dealer Loans) are not available to satisfy the general 
obligations of the Company. The expected annualized cost of the secured 
financing, including underwriter's fees, the insurance premiums and other costs 
is approximately 8.1%. The Company receives a monthly servicing fee paid out of 
collections equal to 6% of the collections received with respect to the conveyed 
Dealer Loans. Except for the servicing fee and payments due to dealer-partners, 
the Company does not receive, or have any rights in, any portion of such 
collections, except for a limited right in its capacity as Servicer to exercise 
a "clean-up call" option to purchase Dealer Loans from Funding 2006-1 under 
certain specified circumstances. Alternatively, when the trust's underlying 
indebtedness is paid in full, either through collections or through a prepayment 
of the indebtedness, remaining collections would be paid over to Funding 2006-1 
as the sole beneficiary of the trust where they would be available to be 
distributed to the Company as the sole member of Funding 2006-1. 
 
     The Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Credit Acceptance Funding LLC 2006-2 
("Funding 2006-2"), completed a secured financing transaction in which Funding 
2006-2 received $100.0 million in financing. In connection with this 
transaction, the Company conveyed, for cash and the sole membership interest in 
Funding 2006-2, Dealer Loans having a net book value of approximately $125.6 
million to Funding 2006-2, which, in turn, conveyed the Dealer Loans to a trust 
that issued $100.0 million in notes to qualified institutional investors. A 
primary and backup financial insurance policy has been issued in connection with 
the transaction. The policies guarantee the timely payment of interest and 
ultimate repayment of principal on the final scheduled distribution date. The 
notes were rated "Aaa" by Moody's Investor Services and "AAA" by Standard & 
Poor's Rating Services. The proceeds of the initial conveyance to Funding 2006-2 
were used by the Company to purchase Dealer Loans, on an arm's-length basis, 
from Warehouse Funding. Through November 16, 2007, the Company may be required, 
and is likely to convey, additional Dealer Loans to Funding 2006-2, which will 
be conveyed by Funding 2006-2 to the trust. After November 16, 2007, the debt 
outstanding under this facility will begin to amortize. The secured financing 
creates loans for which the trust is liable and which are secured by all the 
assets of the trust. Such loans are non-recourse to the Company, even though the 
trust, Funding 2006-2 and the Company are consolidated for financial reporting 
purposes. As Funding 2006-2 is organized as a separate legal entity from the 
Company, assets of Funding 2006-2 (including the conveyed Dealer Loans) are not 
available to satisfy the general obligations of the Company. The expected 
annualized cost of the secured financing, including underwriter's fees, the 
insurance premiums and other costs is approximately 7.4%. The Company receives a 
monthly servicing fee paid out of collections equal to 6% of the collections 



received with respect to the conveyed Dealer Loans. Except for the servicing fee 
and payments due to dealer-partners, the Company does not receive, or have any 
rights in, any portion of such collections, except for a limited right in its 
capacity as Servicer to exercise a "clean-up call" option to purchase Dealer 
Loans from Funding 2006-2 under certain specified circumstances. Alternatively, 
when the trust's underlying indebtedness is paid in full, either through 
collections or through a prepayment of the indebtedness, remaining collections 
would be paid over to Funding 2006-2 as the sole beneficiary of the trust where 
they would be available to be distributed to the Company as the sole member of 
Funding 2006-2. 
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            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
4.   DEBT - (CONCLUDED) 
 
     The Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Credit Acceptance Residual Funding 
LLC ("Residual Funding"), has a $50.0 million secured credit facility with an 
institutional investor. This facility allows Residual Funding to finance its 
purchase of trust certificates from special purpose entities (the "Term SPEs") 
that purchased loans to dealer-partners under the Company's term securitization 
transactions. Historically, the Term SPEs' residual interests in Dealer Loans, 
represented by their trust certificates, have proven to have value that 
increases as their term securitization obligations amortize. The new facility 
enables the Term SPEs to realize and distribute to the Company up to 65% of that 
increase in value prior to the time the related term securitization senior notes 
are paid in full. Residual Funding's interests in Dealer Loans, represented by 
its purchased trust certificates, are subordinated to the interests of term 
securitization senior noteholders but the entire arrangement is non-recourse to 
the Company. As Residual Funding is organized as a separate legal entity from 
the Company, assets of Residual Funding, including purchased trust certificates, 
are not available to satisfy the general obligations of the Company, even though 
Residual Funding and the Company are consolidated for financial reporting 
purposes. 
 
MORTGAGE LOAN 
 
     The Company has a mortgage loan from a commercial bank that is secured by a 
first mortgage lien on the Company's headquarters building and an assignment of 
all leases, rents, revenues and profits under all present and future leases of 
the building. There were $6.6 million and $6.8 million outstanding on this loan 
as of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively. The loan matures on 
June 9, 2009, bears interest at a fixed rate of 5.35%, and requires monthly 
payments of $92,156 and a balloon payment at maturity for the balance of the 
loan. 
 
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
 
     As of March 31, 2007, the Company has various capital lease obligations 
outstanding for computer equipment, with monthly payments totaling $74,000. The 
total amount of capital lease obligations outstanding as of March 31, 2007 and 
December 31, 2006 was $1.7 million and $1.8 million, respectively. These capital 
lease obligations bear interest at rates ranging from 7.23% to 8.71% and have 
maturity dates between April 2007 and June 2010. 
 
LETTERS OF CREDIT 
 
     Letters of credit are issued by a commercial bank and reduce amounts 
available under the Company's line of credit. As of March 31, 2007, the Company 
had one letter of credit in the amount of $0.4 million. As of December 31, 2006, 
the Company had two letters of credit in the amount of $0.9 million. The letter 
of credit relates to reinsurance agreements. The letter of credit expires on May 
26, 2007, at which time it will be automatically extended for the period of one 
year unless the Company is notified otherwise by the commercial bank. 
 
DEBT COVENANTS 
 
     As of March 31, 2007, the Company is in compliance with various restrictive 
debt covenants that require the maintenance of certain financial ratios and 
other financial conditions. The most restrictive covenants require a minimum 
ratio of the Company's assets to debt and its earnings before interest, taxes 
and non-cash expenses to fixed charges. The covenants also limit the maximum 
ratio of the Company's debt to tangible net worth, and the Company must also 
maintain a specified minimum level of net worth, which may indirectly limit the 
payment of dividends on common stock. 
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            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
5.   RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
     In the normal course of its business, the Company has Dealer Loans with 
affiliated dealer-partners owned or controlled by: (i) the Company's majority 
shareholder and Chairman; (ii) a member of the Chairman's immediate family; and 
(iii) the Company's former President, Keith P. McCluskey. Mr. McCluskey resigned 
from his position with the Company effective September 1, 2006. Transactions 
with Mr. McCluskey are reported below through December 31, 2006. The Company's 
Dealer Loans from affiliated dealer-partners and nonaffiliated dealer-partners 
are on the same terms. A summary of related party Dealer Loan activity is as 
follows (in thousands): 
 
 
 
                    As of March 31, 2007           As of December 31, 2006 
               --------------------------------  ------------------------------ 
                Affiliated                       Affiliated 
               Dealer Loan            % of       Dealer Loan           % of 
                 balance          consolidated     balance         consolidated 
               ------------       -------------  -----------       ------------ 
                                                        
Affiliated 
Dealer 
Loan balance     $ 18,886             2.4%        $ 22,434             3.1% 
 
 
 
 
                  For the Three Months ended        For the Three Months ended 
                        March 31, 2007                    March 31, 2006 
               ---------------------------------  ------------------------------ 
                 Affiliated                       Affiliated 
               dealer-partner         % of      dealer-partner          % of 
                  activity        consolidated     activity         consolidated 
               --------------     ------------  --------------      ------------ 
                                                         
Advances           $ 4,212            2.0%          $  6,099              3.9% 
 
Affiliated 
dealer-partner 
revenue            $ 1,218            2.6%          $  1,594              3.7% 
 
Dealer 
holdback 
payments           $   557            2.7%          $    389               2.2% 
 
 
     Pursuant to an employment agreement with the Company's former President, 
Mr. McCluskey, dated April 19, 2001, the Company loaned Mr. McCluskey's 
dealerships $0.9 million. Obligations under this note, including all principal 
and interest, were paid in full on August 16, 2006. In addition, pursuant to the 
employment agreement, the Company loaned Mr. McCluskey approximately $0.5 
million. The note, including all principal and interest, is due on April 19, 
2011, bears interest at 5.22% and is unsecured. The balance of the note 
including accrued but unpaid interest was approximately $0.6 million as of 
December 31, 2006. 
 
     The Company paid for air transportation services provided by a company 
owned by the Company's majority shareholder and Chairman totaling $10,000 for 
the three months ended March 31, 2006. No such services were provided for the 
three months ended March 31, 2007. 
 
     Beginning in 2002, entities owned by the Company's majority shareholder and 
Chairman began offering secured lines of credit to third parties in a manner 
similar to a program previously offered by the Company. In December of 2004, the 
Company's majority shareholder and Chairman sold his ownership interest in these 
entities; however he continues to have indirect control over these entities and 
has the right or obligation to reacquire the entities under certain 
circumstances until December 31, 2014 or the repayment of the related purchase 
money note. 
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            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
6.   INCOME TAXES 
 
     A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory rate to the Company's 
effective tax rate, excluding the results of the discontinued United Kingdom 
operations, is as follows: 
 
 
 
                                          THREE MONTHS ENDED 
                                               MARCH 31, 
                                       ------------------------ 
                                        2007             2006 
                                       -----            ------ 
                                                   
U.S. federal statutory rate            35.0%            35.0% 
State income taxes                      1.9              1.4 
Other                                  (4.7)             0.2 
                                       ----             ---- 
Effective tax rate                     32.2%            36.6% 
                                       ====             ==== 
 
 
     The differences between the U.S. federal statutory rate and the Company's 
consolidated effective tax rate are primarily related to state income taxes and 
reserves for uncertain tax positions that are included in the provision for 
income taxes. The decrease in the effective tax rate to 32.2% for the three 
months ended March 31, 2007, from 36.6% for the same period in 2006 is primarily 
due to a decrease in the Company's reserve for uncertain tax positions recorded 
in the first quarter of 2007. 
 
     The Company adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As a result of the 
implementation, the Company recognized a $0.1 million increase to reserves for 
uncertain tax positions. This increase was accounted for as an adjustment to the 
beginning balance of retained earnings on the balance sheet. Including the 
cumulative effect of FIN 48 implementation, at the beginning of 2007, the 
Company had approximately $10.0 million of total gross unrecognized tax benefit 
that, if recognized, would favorably affect the effective income tax rate in 
future periods. During the quarter ended March 31, 2007, the Company recorded an 
additional increase in the unrecognized tax benefit of $0.5 million that 
resulted in total of $10.5 million of gross unrecognized benefit as of March 31, 
2007. 
 
     The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax in 
multiple state jurisdictions. The Company has substantially concluded all U.S. 
federal income tax matters for years through 2001. Substantially all material 
state and local tax matters have been concluded for years through 2002 and 
foreign tax matters have been concluded through 2000. The federal income tax 
return for 2004 and 2005 is currently under examination. The examination began 
during the three months ended March 31, 2007 and the Company expects that it may 
not be completed by the end of 2007. 
 
     The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters 
in general and administrative expense. As of January 1, 2007, upon the FIN 48 
implementation, the Company had approximately $2.1 million and $0.9 million of 
accrued interest and penalties, respectively, related to uncertain tax 
positions. During the quarter ended March 31, 2007, the Company recorded an 
additional $0.2 million of interest and $0.1 million of penalties related to 
uncertain tax matters. 
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            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
7.   CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS 
 
     NET INCOME PER SHARE 
 
     Basic net income per share has been computed by dividing net income by the 
weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net income per 
share has been computed by dividing net income by the total of the weighted 
average number of common shares and dilutive common shares outstanding. Dilutive 
common shares included in the computation represent shares issuable upon assumed 
exercise of stock options that would have a dilutive effect using the treasury 
stock method. The share effect is as follows: 
 
 
 
                                                THREE MONTHS ENDED 
                                                     MARCH 31, 
                                            --------------------------- 
                                               2007             2006 
                                            ----------       ---------- 
                                                        
Weighted average common shares outstanding  30,054,349       36,146,994 
Common stock equivalents                     1,229,346        2,462,263 
                                            ----------       ---------- 
Weighted average common shares and common 
  stock equivalents                         31,283,695       38,609,257 
                                            ==========       ========== 
 
 
There were no stock options that would be anti-dilutive for the three months 
ended March 31, 2007 and 2006. 
 
     STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS 
 
     Pursuant to the Company's Incentive Compensation Plan (the "Incentive 
Plan"), which was approved by shareholders on May 13, 2004, the Company had 
reserved 1.0 million shares of its common stock for the future granting of 
restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock options, and performance awards 
to employees, officers, and directors at any time prior to April 1, 2014. 
 
     During the three months ended March 31, 2007, the Company granted 56,669 
shares of restricted stock to employees and officers under the Incentive Plan, 
all of which vest over a three year period. During the three months ended March 
31, 2007, 637 restricted stock shares vested. At March 31, 2007 and December 31, 
2006, the Company had 202,626 and 146,028 shares of restricted stock 
outstanding, respectively. Shares available for future grants under the 
Incentive Plan totaled 497,303 at March 31, 2007. 
 
     On February 22, 2007, the Compensation Committee approved an award of 
300,000 restricted stock units to the Company's Chief Executive Officer, Brett 
A. Roberts. Each restricted stock unit represents and has a value equal to one 
share of common stock of the Company. The restricted stock units will be earned 
over a five year period based upon the annual increase in the Company's adjusted 
economic profit. As a result of this grant, Mr. Roberts will not participate in 
other annual cash bonuses or annual restricted stock grants over the five year 
period. Any earned shares will be distributed to Mr. Roberts on February 22, 
2014. The Company recognized $0.4 million of expense related to the award of 
restricted stock units to Mr. Roberts during the three months ended March 31, 
2007. 
 
     The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $0.4 million and 
$0.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007 and March 31, 2006, 
respectively, for outstanding restricted stock and restricted stock units. 
Stock-based compensation recognized for the three months ended March 31, 2007 
included expenses related to the award of restricted stock units to Mr. Roberts. 
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            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
8.   BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 
     The Company has two reportable business segments: United States and Other. 
The United States segment primarily consists of the Company's United States 
automobile financing business. The Other segment consists of the following: a 
United Kingdom automobile financing business, an automobile leasing business, a 
Canadian automobile financing business and a business that provided secured 
lines of credit and floorplan financing. The Company is currently liquidating 
all businesses classified in the Other segment. 
 
     Selected segment information is set forth below (in thousands): 
 
 
 
                                                       THREE MONTHS ENDED 
                                                           MARCH 31, 
                                                 ----------------------------- 
                                                   2007                  2006 
                                                 --------              ------- 
                                                                  
Revenue: 
   United States                                 $ 57,313              $ 53,042 
   Other                                               38                   (16) 
                                                 --------              -------- 
      Total revenue                              $ 57,351              $ 53,026 
                                                 ========              ======== 
 
Income from continuing 
   operations before 
   provision for income taxes: 
   United States                                 $ 22,691              $ 27,212 
   Other                                               (5)                  (79) 
                                                 --------              -------- 
      Total income from 
      continuing operations 
      before provision for 
      income taxes                               $ 22,686              $ 27,133 
                                                 ========              ======== 
 
 
 
 
                                        AS OF                       AS OF 
                                   MARCH 31, 2007             DECEMBER 31, 2006 
                                   --------------             ----------------- 
                                                         
Segment Assets 
   United States                   $      811,568             $         724,008 
   Other                                    1,303                         1,205 
                                   --------------             ----------------- 
      Total Assets                 $      812,871             $         725,213 
                                   ==============             ================= 
 
 
9.   DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS 
 
     As of March 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, deferred debt issuance costs 
were $2.0 million (net of amortization expense of $5.1 million) and $3.0 million 
(net of amortization expense of $4.1 million), respectively. Expenses associated 
with the issuance of debt instruments are capitalized and amortized over the 
term of the debt instrument on a level-yield basis for term secured financings 
and on a straight-line basis for lines of credit and revolving secured 
financings. 
 
10.  COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 
     The Company's comprehensive income for the three months ended March 31, 
2007 and 2006 is set forth below (in thousands): 
 
 
 
                                                      THREE MONTHS ENDED 
                                                          MARCH 31, 
                                                  --------------------------- 
                                                    2007               2006 



                                                  --------           -------- 
                                                                
Net income                                        $ 15,360           $ 17,197 
   Other comprehensive gain 
   (loss), net of tax                                   11                (19) 
                                                  --------           -------- 
Comprehensive income                              $ 15,371           $ 17,178 
                                                  ========           ======== 
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            NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONCLUDED) 
                                   (UNAUDITED) 
 
11.  SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 
     On April 12, 2007, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, Credit Acceptance 
Funding LLC 2007-1 ("Funding 2007-1"), completed a secured financing transaction 
in which Funding 2007-1 received $100.0 million in financing. In connection with 
this transaction, the Company conveyed, for cash and the sole membership 
interest in Funding 2007-1, Dealer Loans having a net book value of 
approximately $125.7 million to Funding 2007-1, which, in turn, conveyed the 
Dealer Loans to a trust that issued $100.0 million in notes to qualified 
institutional investors bearing fixed interest rates of 5.32%. A primary 
financial insurance policy has been issued in connection with the transaction 
that guarantees the timely payment of interest and ultimate repayment of 
principal on the final scheduled distribution date. The notes were rated "Aaa" 
by Moody's Investor Services and "AAA" by Standard & Poor's Rating Services. 
 
     The proceeds of the initial conveyance to Funding 2007-1 were used by the 
Company to purchase Dealer Loans, on an arm's-length basis, from Warehouse 
Funding. Through April 15, 2008, the Company may be required, and is likely, to 
convey additional Dealer Loans to Funding 2007-1, which will be conveyed by 
Funding 2007-1 to the trust. After April 15, 2008, the debt outstanding under 
this facility will begin to amortize. The total expected term of the facility is 
24 months. The secured financing creates loans for which the trust is liable and 
which are secured by all the assets of the trust and of Funding 2007-1. Such 
loans are non-recourse to the Company, even though the trust, Funding 2007-1 and 
the Company are consolidated for financial reporting purposes. 
 
     As Funding 2007-1 is organized as a separate legal entity from the Company, 
assets of Funding 2007-1 (including the conveyed Dealer Loans) are not available 
to satisfy the general obligations of the Company. The expected annualized cost 
of the secured financing, including underwriter's fees, the insurance premiums 
and other costs is approximately 7.2%. The Company receives a monthly servicing 
fee paid out of collections equal to 6% of the collections received with respect 
to the conveyed Dealer Loans. Except for the servicing fee and payments due to 
dealer-partners, the Company does not receive, or have any rights in, any 
portion of such collections, except for a limited right in its capacity as 
Servicer to exercise a "clean-up call" option to purchase Dealer Loans from 
Funding 2007-1 under certain specified circumstances. Alternatively, when the 
trust's underlying indebtedness is paid in full, either through collections or 
through a prepayment of the indebtedness, remaining collections would be paid 
over to Funding 2007-1 as the sole beneficiary of the trust where they would be 
available to be distributed to the Company as the sole member of Funding 2007-1. 
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ITEM 2.  MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS 
         OF OPERATIONS 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
      Since 1972, Credit Acceptance has provided auto loans to consumers, 
regardless of their credit history. The Company's product is offered through a 
nationwide network of automobile dealers who benefit from sales of vehicles to 
consumers who otherwise could not obtain financing; from repeat and referral 
sales generated by these same customers; and from sales to customers responding 
to advertisements for the Company's product, but who actually end up qualifying 
for traditional financing. 
 
      The Company is an indirect lender from a legal perspective, meaning the 
Consumer Loan is originated by the dealer-partner and immediately assigned to 
the Company. Typically, the compensation paid to the dealer-partner in exchange 
for the Consumer Loan is paid in two parts. A portion of the compensation is 
paid at the time of origination, and a portion is paid over time. The amount 
paid at the time of origination is called an advance; the portion paid over time 
is based on the performance of the loan and is called dealer holdback. 
 
      For accounting purposes, the transactions described above are not 
considered to be loans to consumers. Instead, the Company's accounting reflects 
that of a lender to the dealer-partner. This classification for accounting 
purposes is primarily a result of (i) the dealer-partner's financial interest in 
the Consumer Loan and (ii) certain elements of the Company's legal relationship 
with the dealer-partner. The cash amount advanced to the dealer-partner is 
recorded as an asset on the Company's balance sheet. The aggregate amount of all 
advances to an individual dealer-partner, plus accrued income, less repayments 
comprises the amount recorded in Loans receivable. 
 
      A small percentage of Consumer Loans in the United States are assigned to 
the Company in exchange for a single payment. Because the dealer-partner does 
not retain a financial interest in loans acquired in this manner, these loans 
are considered to be Purchased Loans for accounting purposes. 
 
      Critical success factors for the Company include access to capital and the 
ability to accurately forecast Consumer Loan performance. The Company's strategy 
for accessing the capital required to grow its business is to: (i) maintain 
consistent financial performance, (ii) maintain modest financial leverage, and 
(iii) maintain multiple funding sources. The Company's funded debt to equity 
ratio is 2.0 to 1.0 at March 31, 2007. The Company currently funds its business 
through four primary sources of financing: (i) a revolving secured line of 
credit with a commercial bank syndicate; (ii) a revolving secured warehouse 
facility with institutional investors; (iii) 144A asset backed securitizations 
with qualified institutional investors; and (iv) a residual credit facility. 
 
      The ability to accurately forecast Consumer Loan performance is critical 
to the Company. At the time of Consumer Loan acceptance, the Company forecasts 
future expected cash flows from the Consumer Loan. Based on these forecasts, an 
advance is made to the related dealer-partner at a level designated to achieve 
an acceptable return on capital. If Consumer Loan performance equals or exceeds 
the Company's original expectation, it is likely the Company's target return on 
capital will be achieved. 
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CONSUMER LOAN PERFORMANCE 
 
      Although the majority of loan originations are recorded in the Company's 
financial statements as Dealer Loans, each transaction starts with a loan from 
the dealer-partner to the individual purchasing the vehicle. Since the cash 
flows available to repay the Dealer Loans are generated, in most cases, from the 
underlying Consumer Loan, the performance of the Consumer Loans is critical to 
the Company's financial results. The following table presents forecasted 
Consumer Loan collection rates, advance rates, the spread (the forecasted 
collection rate less the advance rate), and the percentage of the forecasted 
collections that have been realized as of March 31, 2007 for the United States 
business segment. Payments of dealer holdback and accelerated payments of dealer 
holdback are not included in the analysis of the initial advance paid to the 
dealer-partner. All amounts are presented as a percentage of the initial balance 
of the Consumer Loan (principal + interest). 
 
 
 
                                        As of March 31, 2007 
                  -------------------------------------------------------------- 
  Year of          Forecasted                                      % of Forecast 
Origination       Collection %      Advance %       Spread %         Realized 
- -----------       ------------      ---------       --------       ------------- 
                                                        
   1997              58.4%            47.9%           10.5%            99.9% 
   1998              67.4%            46.0%           21.4%            99.4% 
   1999              72.4%            48.7%           23.7%            98.6% 
   2000              72.9%            47.9%           25.0%            97.8% 
   2001              67.8%            46.0%           21.8%            97.2% 
   2002              70.8%            42.2%           28.6%            97.0% 
   2003              74.3%            43.4%           30.9%            95.8% 
   2004              74.1%            44.0%           30.1%            87.0% 
   2005              74.0%            46.9%           27.1%            70.6% 
   2006              71.0%            46.6%           24.4%            33.3% 
   2007              69.1%            46.1%           23.0%             4.4% 
 
 
      Accurately forecasting future collection rates is critical to the 
Company's success. The risk of a forecasting error declines as Consumer Loans 
age. For example, the risk of a material forecasting error for business written 
in 1999 is very small since 98.6% of the total amount forecasted has already 
been realized. In contrast, the Company's forecast for recent Consumer Loans is 
less certain. If the Company produces disappointing operating results, it will 
likely be because the Company overestimated future Consumer Loan performance. 
Although the Company believes its forecasted collection rates are as accurate as 
possible, there can be no assurance that the Company's estimates will be 
accurate or that Consumer Loan performance will be as expected. 
 
     A wider spread between the forecasted collection rate and the advance rate 
reduces the Company's risk of credit losses. Because collections are applied to 
advances on an individual dealer-partner basis, a wide spread does not eliminate 
the risk of losses, but it does reduce the risk significantly. While the spread 
has decreased from 2003 to 2007, the Company believes it is still at a 
sufficient level to minimize the Company's risk of being able to recover the 
cash advance. 
 
      The following table compares the Company's forecast of Consumer Loan 
collection rates as of March 31, 2007 with the forecast as of December 31, 2006: 
 
 
 
                           March 31, 2007         December 31, 2006 
Loan Origination Year  Forecasted Collection % Forecasted Collection %  Variance 
- ---------------------  ----------------------- -----------------------  -------- 
                                                                
         1997                   58.4%                   58.4%              0.0% 
         1998                   67.4%                   67.5%             (0.1)% 
         1999                   72.4%                   72.4%              0.0% 
         2000                   72.9%                   73.0%             (0.1)% 
         2001                   67.8%                   67.7%              0.1% 
         2002                   70.8%                   70.7%              0.1% 
         2003                   74.3%                   74.2%              0.1% 
         2004                   74.1%                   73.9%              0.2% 
         2005                   74.0%                   74.2%*            (0.2)% 
         2006                   71.0%                   71.1%*            (0.1)% 
 
 
     * The forecasted collection percentage amounts differ from those 



       previously reported as they have been revised for a seasonality factor. 
       The following table compares the Company's forecast of Consumer Loan 
       collection rates as of March 31, 2007, with the forecast as of 
       December 31, 2006 without the revised seasonality factors: 
 
 
 
 
Loan Origination Year    March 31, 2007    December 31, 2006    Variance 
- ---------------------    --------------    -----------------    -------- 
                                                        
       2005                  74.2%              73.8%             0.4% 
       2006                  71.9%              70.5%             1.4% 
 
 
     Forecasted collection percentage amounts prior to 2005 are not impacted by 
     the seasonality factor. 
 
     Collection results for the 2007 first quarter were generally consistent 
with the Company's expectations. 
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      The Company modified its loan pricing model during the third quarter of 
2006. As a result, the composition of new loan originations changed during the 
three months ended March 31, 2007 compared to the same period in 2006 as 
follows: (1) the average loan size was larger by 12.2%, (2) the average loan 
term increased from 34 to 40 months, (3) the projected return on capital has 
decreased by approximately 125 basis points, and (4) the average spread between 
the advance rate and the expected collection rate has decreased by approximately 
300 basis points. The Company also increased its Consumer Loan unit volume by 
26.3% and believes this higher volume was primarily due to the pricing 
modification. 
 
      There were no other material changes in credit policy or pricing during 
2007, other than routine changes designed to maintain profitability levels. 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
                 Three Months Ended March 31, 2007 Compared to 
                       Three Months Ended March 31, 2006 
 
     The following is a discussion of the results of operations and income 
            statement data for the Company on a consolidated basis. 
 
 
 
(Dollars in thousands)              THREE                   THREE 
                                    MONTHS                 MONTHS 
                                    ENDED                   ENDED 
                                   MARCH 31,      % OF    MARCH 31,    % OF 
                                     2007        REVENUE    2006      REVENUE 
                                  ------------  --------- --------- ------------ 
                                                         
REVENUE: 
      Finance charges             $     51,413      89.7% $ 46,007         86.7% 
      License fees                          82       0.1     2,897          5.5 
      Other income                       5,856      10.2     4,122          7.8 
                                  ------------  --------  --------  ----------- 
        Total revenue                   57,351     100.0    53,026        100.0 
COSTS AND EXPENSES: 
      Salaries and wages                11,861      20.7    10,594         19.9 
      General and administrative         5,967      10.4     6,765         12.8 
      Sales and marketing                4,472       7.8     4,359          8.2 
      Provision for credit losses        3,873       6.8       524          1.0 
      Interest                           8,471      14.8     3,574          6.7 
      Other expense                         25        --        82          0.2 
                                  ------------  --------  --------  ----------- 
        Total costs and expenses        34,669      60.5    25,898         48.8 
                                  ------------  --------  --------  ----------- 
Operating income                        22,682      39.5    27,128         51.2 
      Foreign currency gain                  4        --         5           -- 
                                  ------------  --------  --------  ----------- 
Income from continuing operations 
before provision for income taxes       22,686      39.5    27,133         51.2 
      Provision for income taxes         7,299      12.7     9,928         18.7 
                                  ------------  --------  --------  ----------- 
Income from continuing operations       15,387      26.8    17,205         32.5 
                                  ------------  --------  --------  ----------- 
Discontinued operations 
      Loss from discontinued 
      United Kingdom operations            (38)       --       (13)          -- 
      Credit for income taxes              (11)       --        (5)          -- 
                                  ------------  --------  --------  ----------- 
      Loss on discontinued 
      operations                           (27)       --        (8)          -- 
                                  ------------  --------  --------  ----------- 
Net income                        $     15,360      26.8% $ 17,197         32.5% 
                                  ============  ========  ========  =========== 
Net income per common share: 
      Basic                       $       0.51                      $      0.48 
                                  ============                      =========== 
      Diluted                     $       0.49                      $      0.45 
                                  ============                      =========== 
Income from continuing 
operations per common share: 
      Basic                       $       0.51                      $      0.48 
                                  ============                      =========== 
      Diluted                     $       0.49                      $      0.45 
                                  ============                      =========== 
Loss from discontinued 
operations per common share: 
      Basic                       $      (0.00)                     $     (0.00) 
                                  ============                      =========== 
      Diluted                     $      (0.00)                     $     (0.00) 
                                  ============                      =========== 
Weighted average shares 
outstanding: 
      Basic                         30,054,349                       36,146,994 
      Diluted                       31,283,695                       38,609,257 
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      For the three months ended March 31, 2007, net income decreased to $15.4 
million, or $0.49 per diluted share, compared to $17.2 million, or $0.45 per 
diluted share, for the same period in 2006. The decrease in net income primarily 
reflects the following: 
 
      -     Interest expense increased $4.9 million primarily due to a 150.2% 
            increase in the amount of average outstanding debt as a result of 
            borrowings used to fund stock repurchases during 2006 and new Dealer 
            Loan originations. 
 
      -     The provision for credit losses increased $3.3 million primarily due 
            to an increase in the provision required to maintain the initial 
            yield established at the inception of the Dealer Loan. 
 
      -     License fees decreased $2.8 million due to the change in the 
            Company's methodology of collecting dealer-partners monthly CAPS 
            fees. Effective January 1, 2007, the Company implemented a change 
            designed to positively impact dealer-partner attrition. The Company 
            will continue to charge a monthly fee of $599 but, instead of 
            collecting and recognizing the license fee revenue in the current 
            period, the Company will collect the license fee from future 
            dealer-holdback payments and recognize it as finance charges over 
            the life of the Dealer Loans. 
 
      Partially offsetting these decreases to net income: 
 
      -     Finance charges increased to $51.4 million (11.8%) primarily due to 
            a 15.6% increase in the average size of the combined Dealer and 
            Purchased Loan portfolio as a result of an increase in the number of 
            active dealer-partners, partially offset by a decrease in the number 
            of transactions per dealer-partner. The increase was partially 
            offset by an 86 basis point decrease in the combined average yield 
            on Dealer and Purchased Loans primarily due to pricing changes 
            implemented during the third quarter of 2006. 
 
      -     Other income increased to $5.9 million (42.1%) primarily due to 
            profit sharing payments received from ancillary product providers 
            during the first quarter of 2007. 
 
      -     General and administrative expenses decreased primarily due to 
            increased accounting fees in the first quarter of 2006 related to 
            the Company's restatement of its financial statements and a decrease 
            in corporate legal expenses in the first quarter of 2007. 
 
      -     The Company's effective tax rate decreased from 36.6% to 32.2% 
            primarily due to a decrease in the Company's reserve for uncertain 
            tax positions recorded in the first quarter of 2007. 
 
      Finance Charges. Finance charges increased to $51.4 million for the three 
months ended March 31, 2007 from $46.0 million for the same period in 2006 
primarily due to a 15.6% increase in the average size of the combined Dealer and 
Purchased Loan portfolio as a result of an increase in the number of active 
dealer-partners, partially offset by a decrease in the number of transactions 
per dealer-partner. The increase was partially offset by an 86 basis point 
decrease in the combined average yield on Dealer and Purchased Loans primarily 
due to pricing changes implemented in the third quarter of 2006. 
 
    The following table summarizes the changes in active dealer-partners and 
corresponding Consumer Loan unit volume for the three months ended March 31, 
2007 and 2006: 
 
 
 
                                              THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 
                                        ---------------------------------------- 
                                         2007                2006       % CHANGE 
                                        ------              ------      -------- 
                                                                
Consumer Loan unit volume               36,609              28,994        26.3% 
Active dealer-partners (1)               1,910               1,491        28.1% 
                                        ------              ------ 
Average volume per dealer-partner         19.2                19.4        -1.0% 
 
Consumer Loan unit volume from 
  dealer-partners active both 
  periods                               24,319              23,830         2.1% 
Dealer-partners active both 
  periods                                1,021               1,021           0% 



                                        ------              ------ 
Average volume per dealer-partner 
  active both periods                     23.8                23.3         2.1% 
 
Consumer Loan unit volume from 
  new dealer-partners                    2,578               2,099        22.8% 
New active dealer-partners (2)             321                 220        45.9% 
                                        ------              ------ 
Average volume per new active 
  dealer-partner                          8.0                 9.5       -15.8% 
 
Attrition (3)                           -17.8%              -16.8% 
 
 
(1)   Active dealer-partners are dealer-partners who submit at least one 
      Consumer Loan during the period. 
 
(2)   New active dealer-partners are dealer-partners that have enrolled in the 
      Company's program and have submitted their first Consumer Loan to the 
      Company during the period. 
 
(3)   Attrition is measured according to the following formula: decrease in 
      Consumer Loan unit volume from dealer-partners who submitted at least one 
      Consumer Loan during the comparable period of the prior year but who 
      submitted no Consumer Loans during the current period divided by prior 
      year comparable period Consumer Loan unit volume. 
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      Dealer-partners that enroll in the Company's program have the option to 
pay an initial $9,850 enrollment fee or can defer their fee. Dealer-partners 
choosing the latter option agree to allow the Company to keep 50% of the first 
accelerated dealer holdback payment. This payment, called Portfolio Profit 
Express, is paid to qualifying dealer-partners after 100 Consumer Loans have 
been originated and assigned to the Company. While the Company will lose 
enrollment fee revenue on those dealer-partners choosing this option and not 
reaching 100 Consumer Loans or otherwise qualifying for a Portfolio Profit 
Express payment, the Company estimates that it will realize higher per 
dealer-partner enrollment fee revenue from those dealer-partners choosing this 
option and qualifying for a Portfolio Profit Express payment. Based on the 
historical average of Portfolio Profit Express payments, the Company expects 
average enrollment fee revenue per dealer-partner for those dealer-partners 
electing the deferred option and reaching 100 Consumer Loans will be 
approximately $13,000. Approximately 75% of the dealer-partners that enrolled 
during the first quarter of 2007 took advantage of the deferred enrollment 
option. 
 
      License Fees. License fees decreased to $0.1 million for the three months 
ended March 31, 2007 from $2.9 million for the same period in 2006. License fees 
represent CAPS fees charged to dealer-partners on a monthly basis. The decrease 
is primarily due to a change in the Company's method of collecting the monthly 
CAPS fee. Effective January 1, 2007, the Company implemented a change designed 
to positively impact dealer-partner attrition. The Company will continue to 
charge a monthly fee of $599, but instead of collecting and recognizing the 
revenue from the fee in the current period, the Company will collect it from 
future dealer holdback payments. As a result of this change, the Company now 
records license fees as a yield adjustment, recognizing these fees as finance 
charge revenue over the term of the Dealer Loan. The Company will continue to 
recognize a small amount of license fee revenue related to dealer-partners 
originating Purchased Loans. 
 
     To allow shareholders to more precisely track the Company's financial 
performance and make comparisons between periods possible, the Company will 
provide non-GAAP adjusted license fees reflecting the amount of revenue if the 
license fees had always been recorded as a yield adjustment. For the three 
months ended March 31, 2007 and 2006, total revenue would have changed as 
follows: 
 
 
 
(Dollars in thousands)                          AS OF MARCH 31, 
                                         ---------------------------- 
                                           2007                2006 
                                         --------            -------- 
                                                        
Total revenue                            $ 57,351            $ 53,026 
License fee yield adjustment                2,483              (1,050) 
                                         --------            -------- 
Adjusted total revenue                   $ 59,834            $ 51,976 
                                         ========            ======== 
 
 
      Other Income. Other income increased to $5.9 million for the three months 
ended March 31, 2007 from $4.1 million for the same period in 2006. The increase 
is primarily related to profit sharing payments received from ancillary product 
providers during the first quarter of 2007. The amounts received in the first 
quarter of 2007 are the first profit sharing amounts received. Future payments 
of this kind are not estimable, and will therefore be recorded as revenue when 
received. No additional payments are expected in 2007. 
 
      Salaries and Wages. Salaries and wages, as a percentage of revenue, 
increased to 20.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2007 from 19.9% for the 
same period in 2006. The increase in salaries and wages, as a percentage of 
revenue, was primarily due to an increase in stock compensation expense related 
to restricted stock and restricted stock units granted in the first quarter of 
2007. 
 
      General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses, as a 
percentage of revenue, decreased to 10.4% for the three months ended March 31, 
2007 compared to 12.8% for the same period in 2006. The decrease, as a 
percentage of revenue, was primarily due to higher accounting and legal fees in 
the first quarter of 2006 associated primarily with the restatement of the 
Company's financial statements and a decrease in depreciation expense. 
 
      Provision for Credit Losses. The provision for credit losses increased to 
$3.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2007 compared to $0.5 million 
for the same period in 2006. The provision for credit losses consists primarily 



of a provision to reduce the carrying value of Dealer Loans to maintain the 
initial yield established at the inception of each Dealer Loan. Additionally, 
the provision for credit losses includes a provision for losses on Purchased 
Loans and a provision for losses on notes receivable. The increase in the 
provision for the three months ended March 31, 2007 was primarily due to an 
increase in the provision for credit losses required to maintain the initial 
yield established at the inception of each Dealer Loan. 
 
      Interest. Interest expense increased to $8.5 million for the three months 
ended March 31, 2007 from $3.6 million for the same period in 2006. The increase 
in interest expense during the three months ended March 31, 2007 was primarily 
due to a 150.2% increase in the amount of average outstanding debt as a result 
of borrowings used to fund stock repurchases during 
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2006 and new Dealer Loan originations and also due to a 50 basis point increase 
in interest rates. The increase in interest expense was partially offset by the 
decreased impact of fixed fees on the Company's secured financings and line of 
credit facility due to higher outstanding borrowings. 
 
      Provision for Income Taxes. The effective tax rate decreased to 32.2% for 
the three months ended March 31, 2007 from 36.6% for the same period in 2006 
primarily due to a decrease in the Company's reserve for uncertain tax positions 
recorded in the first quarter of 2007. 
 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
      The Company's primary sources of capital are cash flows from operating 
activities, collections of Consumer Loans and borrowings under the Company's 
lines of credit and secured financings. The Company's principal need for capital 
is to fund Dealer Loan originations, for the payment of dealer holdback, and to 
fund stock repurchases. In addition, on February 9, 2007 the Company signed a 
Memorandum of Understanding to settle a consumer class action lawsuit discussed 
in Part II Item 1 of this Report. Credit Acceptance has agreed to pay $12.5 
million in full and final settlement of all claims against the Company. The 
settlement is subject to court approval. 
 
      The Company's cash and cash equivalents decreased to $0.3 million as of 
March 31, 2007 from $8.5 million at December 31, 2006. The Company's total 
balance sheet indebtedness increased to $447.0 million at March 31, 2007 from 
$392.2 million at December 31, 2006. This increase was primarily a result of 
borrowings used to fund new loan originations in 2007. 
 
      Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents increased to $54.3 million as of 
March 31, 2007 from $45.6 million at December 31, 2006. The balance consists 
primarily of cash collections related to secured financings and amounts held in 
trusts for future vehicle service contract claims. 
 
RESTRICTED SECURITIES 
 
      The Company determines the appropriate classification of its investments 
in debt and equity securities at the time of purchase and reevaluates such 
determinations at each balance sheet date. Debt securities for which the Company 
does not have the intent or ability to hold to maturity are classified as 
available for sale, and stated at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, 
net of income taxes included in the determination of comprehensive income and 
reported as a component of shareholders' equity. 
 
      Restricted securities available for sale consisted of the following: 
 
 
 
                                        AS OF MARCH 31, 2007 
                       -------------------------------------------------- 
                                      GROSS         GROSS 
                                    UNREALIZED   UNREALIZED     ESTIMATED 
(in thousands)           COST         GAINS        LOSSES      FAIR VALUE 
                       ----------   ----------   ----------    ---------- 
                                                    
US Government and 
 agency securities     $    1,930   $       --   $       (1)   $    1,929 
Corporate bonds             1,987           --          (38)        1,949 
                       ----------   ----------   ----------    ---------- 
Total restricted 
 securities available 
 for sale              $    3,917   $       --   $      (39)   $    3,878 
                       ==========   ==========   ==========    ========== 
 
 
 
 
                                  AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006 
                    --------------------------------------------------- 
                                  GROSS        GROSS 
                                UNREALIZED   UNREALIZED  ESTIMATED FAIR 
                        COST      GAINS        LOSSES         VALUE 
                    ---------   ----------   ----------  -------------- 
                                              
US Government and 
 agency securities  $   1,578   $     --     $     (8)   $        1,570 
Corporate bonds         2,041         --          (47)            1,994 
                    ---------   --------     --------    -------------- 
Total restricted 
  securities 



  available for sale$   3,619   $     --     $    (55)   $        3,564 
                    =========   ========     ========    ============== 
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      The cost and estimated fair values of securities available for sale by 
contractual maturity as of the dates shown are set forth in the table below 
(securities with multiple maturity dates are classified in the period of final 
maturity). Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because 
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call 
or prepayment penalties. 
 
 
 
(in thousands)         AS OF MARCH 31, 2007         AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006 
                  ------------------------------  ---------------------------- 
                     COST        ESTIMATED FAIR      COST       ESTIMATED FAIR 
                                    VALUE                            VALUE 
                  ------------   ---------------  -----------   -------------- 
                                                     
Contractual 
 Maturity 
 Within 
  one year        $        746   $           745  $       898   $          893 
 Over one 
  year to 
  five years             3,171             3,133        2,721            2,671 
 Over five 
  years to 
  ten years                 --                --           --               -- 
 Over ten 
  years                     --                --           --               -- 
                  ------------   ---------------  -----------   -------------- 
   Total 
    restricted 
    securities 
    available 
    for sale      $      3,917   $        3,878   $     3,619   $        3,564 
                  ============   ==============   ===========   ============== 
 
 
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
 
    In addition to the balance sheet indebtedness as of March 31, 2007, the 
Company also has contractual obligations resulting in future minimum payments 
under operating leases. A summary of the total future contractual obligations 
requiring repayments is as follows (in thousands): 
 
 
 
                                           PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD 
                             -------------------------------------------------- 
                   TOTAL       < 1 YEAR      1-3 YEARS     3-5 YEARS  > 5 YEARS 
                 ---------   ------------   ------------   ---------  --------- 
                                                        
Long-term 
 debt 
 obligations (1) $ 445,335   $    346,150   $     99,185   $      --  $      -- 
Capital lease 
 obligations         1,663            597          1,066          --         -- 
Operating lease 
 obligations         1,409            526            883          --         -- 
Purchase 
 obligations            --             --             --          --         -- 
Other long-term 
 obligations            --             --             --          --         -- 
                 ---------   ------------   ------------   ---------  --------- 
   Total 
    contractual 
    obligations  $ 448,407   $    347,273   $    101,134   $      --  $      -- 
                 =========   ============   ============   =========  ========= 
 
 
(1)   Long-term debt obligations included in the above table consist solely of 
      principal repayments. The Company is also obligated to make interest 
      payments at the applicable interest rates, as discussed in Note 4 in the 
      consolidated financial statements, which is incorporated herein by 
      reference. Based on the amount of debt outstanding and the interest rates 
      as of March 31, 2007, interest is expected to be approximately $18.8 
      million during 2007 and $1.9 million during 2008 and 2009. 
 
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 
 



      The Company's consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance 
with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires the Company to 
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its 
estimates, including those related to the recognition of finance charge revenue 
and the allowance for credit losses. Item 7 of the Company's Annual Report on 
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 discusses several critical 
accounting policies, which the Company believes involve a high degree of 
judgment and complexity. There have been no material changes to the estimates 
and assumptions associated with these accounting policies from those discussed 
in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2006. 
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
      The Company makes forward-looking statements in this report and may make 
such statements in future filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
It may also make forward-looking statements in its press releases or other 
public or shareholder communications. The Company's forward-looking statements 
are subject to risks and uncertainties and include information about its 
expectations and possible or assumed future results of operations. When the 
Company uses any of the words "may," "will," "should," "believes," "expects," 
"anticipates," "assumes," "forecasts," "estimates," "intends," "plans" or 
similar expressions, it is making forward-looking statements. 
 
      The Company claims the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking 
statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for 
all of its forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements 
represent the Company's outlook only as of the date of this report. While the 
Company believes that its forward-looking statements are reasonable, actual 
results could differ materially since the statements are based on our current 
expectations, which are subject to risks and uncertainties. Factors that might 
cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, the factors set forth 
in Item 1A of the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, 
other risk factors discussed herein or listed from time to time in the Company's 
reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the following: 
 
        -   The Company's inability to accurately forecast the amount and timing 
            of future collections could have a material adverse effect on 
            results of operations. 
 
        -   Due to increased competition from traditional financing sources and 
            non-traditional lenders, the Company may not be able to compete 
            successfully. 
 
        -   The Company's ability to maintain and grow the business is dependent 
            on the ability to continue to access funding sources and obtain 
            capital on favorable terms. 
 
        -   The Company may not be able to generate sufficient cash flow to 
            service its outstanding debt and fund operations. 
 
        -   The substantial regulation to which the Company is subject limits 
            the business, and such regulation or changes in such regulation 
            could result in potential liability. 
 
        -   Adverse changes in economic conditions, or in the automobile or 
            finance industries or the non-prime consumer finance market, could 
            adversely affect the Company's financial position, liquidity and 
            results of operations and its ability to enter into future financing 
            transactions. 
 
        -   Litigation the Company is involved in from time to time may 
            adversely affect its financial condition, results of operations and 
            cash flows. 
 
        -   The Company is dependent on its senior management and the loss of 
            any of these individuals or an inability to hire additional 
            personnel could adversely affect its ability to operate profitably. 
 
        -   Natural disasters, acts of war, terrorist attacks and threats or the 
            escalation of military activity in response to such attacks or 
            otherwise may negatively affect the business, financial condition 
            and results of operations. 
 
      Other factors not currently anticipated by management may also materially 
and adversely affect the Company's results of operations. The Company does not 
undertake, and expressly disclaims any obligation, to update or alter its 
statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, 
except as required by applicable law. 
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS. 
 
      Refer to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2006 for a complete discussion of the Company's market risk. There 
have been no material changes to the market risk information included in the 
Company's 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
 
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. 
 
      Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. 
 
      The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed 
to ensure material information required to be disclosed in the Company's reports 
that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, 
processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the 
SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated 
to the Company's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required 
financial disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and 
procedures, management recognized that a control system, no matter how well 
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that 
the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent 
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide 
absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, with 
a company have been detected. 
 
      As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried 
out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the 
Company's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's 
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. Based upon that evaluation, the Company's Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure 
controls and procedures were effective, at the reasonable assurance level, as of 
the end of the period covered by this report to cause the material information 
required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 to be recorded, processed, summarized 
and reported within the time periods specified in the Commission's rules and 
forms. 
 
      Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting. As of March 31, 
2005, in response to a material weakness noted in its internal controls over 
financial reporting related to accounting for income taxes as of December 31, 
2004, the Company implemented changes in internal controls. These changes 
included engaging external tax advisors to assist in the review of our income 
tax calculations. Beginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2007, the Company 
no longer engages external tax advisors to assist in an independent review of 
our income tax calculations. The Company has determined that the remaining 
controls implemented simultaneously (particularly the strengthening of internal 
resources used in preparation of accounting for income taxes) have been 
effectively designed and demonstrated operational effectiveness to enable 
management to consider the independent review a redundant control over the 
Company's accounting for income taxes. 
 
      There have been no other changes in the Company's internal controls over 
financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2007 that have materially 
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal 
controls over financial reporting. 
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                          PART II. - OTHER INFORMATION 
 
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
      In the normal course of business and as a result of the customer-oriented 
nature of the industry in which the Company operates, industry participants are 
frequently subject to various customer claims and litigation seeking damages and 
statutory penalties. The claims allege, among other theories of liability, 
violations of state, federal and foreign truth-in-lending, credit availability, 
credit reporting, customer protection, warranty, debt collection, insurance and 
other customer-oriented laws and regulations, including claims seeking damages 
for physical and mental damages relating to the Company's repossession and sale 
of the customer's vehicle and other debt collection activities. The Company, as 
the assignee of Consumer Loans originated by dealer-partners, may also be named 
as a co-defendant in lawsuits filed by customers principally against 
dealer-partners. Many of these cases are filed as purported class actions and 
seek damages in large dollar amounts. An adverse ultimate disposition in any 
such action could have a material adverse impact on the Company's financial 
position, liquidity and results of operations. 
 
      The Company is currently a defendant in a class action proceeding 
commenced on October 15, 1996 in the Circuit Court of Jackson County, Missouri 
and removed to the United States District Court for the Western District of 
Missouri. The complaint seeks unspecified money damages for alleged violations 
of a number of state and federal consumer protection laws. On October 9, 1997, 
the District Court certified two classes on the claims brought against the 
Company, one relating to alleged overcharges of official fees, the other 
relating to alleged overcharges of post-maturity interest and a subclass 
relating to allegedly inadequate repossession notices. On August 4, 1998, the 
District Court granted partial summary judgment on liability in favor of the 
plaintiffs on the interest overcharge claims based upon the District Court's 
finding of certain violations but denied summary judgment on certain other 
claims. The District Court also entered a number of permanent injunctions, which 
among other things, restrained the Company from collecting on certain class 
accounts. The Court also ruled in favor of the Company on certain claims raised 
by class plaintiffs. Because the entry of an injunction is immediately 
appealable, the Company appealed the summary judgment order to the United States 
Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit. Oral argument on the appeals was heard 
on April 19, 1999. On September 1, 1999, the United States Court of Appeals for 
the Eighth Circuit overturned the August 4, 1998 partial summary judgment order 
and injunctions against the Company. The Court of Appeals held that the District 
Court lacked jurisdiction over the interest overcharge claims and directed the 
District Court to sever those claims and remand them to state court. On February 
18, 2000, the District Court entered an order remanding the post-maturity 
interest class to the Circuit Court of Jackson County, Missouri while retaining 
jurisdiction on the official fee class. The Company then filed a motion 
requesting that the District Court reconsider that portion of its order of 
August 4, 1998, in which the District Court had denied the Company's motion for 
summary judgment on the federal Truth-In-Lending Act ("TILA") claim. On May 26, 
2000, the District Court entered summary judgment in favor of the Company on the 
TILA claim and directed the Clerk of the Court to remand the remaining state law 
official fee claims to the appropriate state court. 
 
      On July 18, 2002, the Circuit Court of Jackson County, Missouri granted 
plaintiffs leave to file a fourth amended petition which was filed on October 
28, 2002. Instead of a subclass of Class 2, that petition alleges a new, 
expanded Class 3 relating to allegedly inadequate repossession notices. The 
Company filed a motion to dismiss the plaintiff's fourth amended complaint on 
November 4, 2002. On November 18, 2002, the Company filed a memorandum urging 
the decertification of the classes. On February 21, 2003, the plaintiffs filed a 
brief opposing the Company's November 4, 2002 motion to dismiss the case. On May 
19, 2004, the Circuit Court released an order, dated January 9, 2004, that 
denied the Company's motion to dismiss. On November 16, 2005 the Circuit Court 
issued an order that, among other things, adopted the District Court's order 
certifying classes. By adopting the District Court's order, the Circuit Court's 
order certified only the two original classes and did not certify the new, 
expanded Class 3. On January 13, 2006, plaintiffs filed a motion entitled 
Plaintiffs' Motion to Adjust Class 2 Definition to Correspond with Allegations 
of Their Fourth Amended Complaint which requested that the "repossession 
subclass" be deleted from Class 2 and a new Class 3 be adopted. The Company 
filed a response arguing that the new, expanded Class 3 is inappropriate for a 
number of reasons including the expiration of the statute of limitations. On May 
23, 2006, the Circuit Court issued several orders, including an order granting 
plaintiffs' motion and adding the new Class 3. On June 2, 2006 the Company filed 
for leave to appeal the Circuit Court's decision to allow the expanded 
repossession class as well as its November 16, 2005 certification order. The 
Court of Appeals denied the Company's request for leave to appeal the Circuit 
Court's decision on August 31, 2006. 



 
      In October 2006, the Company and plaintiffs' counsel commenced settlement 
discussions, agreeing to use a third party facilitator in face to face 
discussions in November and December 2006. These discussions led to the 
execution of a February 9, 2007 Memorandum of Understanding whereby the parties 
agreed to settle the lawsuit. The Company, without any admission of liability, 
agreed to pay $12.5 million in full and final settlement of all claims against 
the Company. The settlement is subject to court approval. 
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ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 
 
 
 
                                                    TOTAL         MAXIMUM 
                                                  NUMBER OF     DOLLAR VALUE 
                                                    SHARES        THAT MAY 
                                                 PURCHASED AS   YET BE USED 
                                                   PART OF      TO PURCHASE 
               TOTAL                               PUBLICLY        SHARES 
             NUMBER OF          AVERAGE           ANNOUNCED      UNDER THE 
               SHARES           PRICE               PLANS          PLANS 
  PERIOD     PURCHASED      PAID PER SHARE       OR PROGRAMS    OR PROGRAMS 
- ---------   ------------    ---------------     -------------   ------------ 
                                                     
January 1 
 through 
 January 
 31, 2007              -    $             -                 -   $  8,631,953 
February 1 
 through 
 February 
 28, 2007             71*                 -                 -      8,631,953 
March 1 
 through 
 March 
 31, 2007              -                  -                 -      8,631,953 
           -------------    ---------------     ------------- 
                       -    $             -                 - 
           =============    ===============     ============= 
 
 
*     Amount represents shares of common stock forfeited to the Company by 
      employees as payment of tax withholdings due to the Company upon the 
      vesting of restricted stock. 
 
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS 
 
      See Index of Exhibits following the signature page, which is incorporated 
herein by reference. 
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                                   SIGNATURE 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 
 
                          CREDIT ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION 
                          (Registrant) 
 
                          By: /s/ Kenneth S. Booth 
                          ------------------------------------------------------ 
                          Kenneth S. Booth 
                          Chief Financial Officer 
                          April 30, 2007 
 
                          (Principal Financial Officer, Principal Accounting 
                           Officer and Duly Authorized Officer) 
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                                INDEX OF EXHIBITS 
 
 
 
 
 EXHIBIT 
    NO.         NOTE                           DESCRIPTION 
- ----------   --------    ------------------------------------------------------ 
                    
   4(f)(86)         1    Amendment No. 3, dated February 14, 2007 to First 
                         Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated 
                         as of February 15, 2006 among the Company, CAC 
                         Warehouse Funding Corporation II, Wachovia Capital 
                         Markets, LLC, Wachovia Bank, National Association, 
                         Variable Funding Capital Company LLC, Park Avenue 
                         Receivables Company LLC and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 
 
   4(f)(87)         2    Indenture dated April 12, 2007 between Credit 
                         Acceptance Auto Dealer Loan Trust 2007-1 and Wells 
                         Fargo Bank National Association. 
 
   4(f)(88)         2    Sale and Servicing Agreement dated April 12, 2007 among 
                         the Company, Credit Acceptance Auto Dealer Loan Trust 
                         2007-1, Credit Acceptance Funding LLC 2007-1, and Wells 
                         Fargo Bank, National Association. 
 
   4(f)(89)         2    Backup Servicing Agreement dated April 12, 2007 among 
                         the Company, Credit Acceptance Funding LLC 2007-1, 
                         Credit Acceptance Auto Dealer Loan Trust 2007-1, Wells 
                         Fargo Bank, National Association, and XL Capital 
                         Assurance Inc. 
 
   4(f)(90)         2    Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated April 12, 
                         2007 between Credit Acceptance Funding LLC 2007-1 and 
                         U.S. Bank Trust National Association. 
 
   4(f)(91)         2    Contribution Agreement dated April 12, 2007 between the 
                         Company and Credit Acceptance Funding LLC 2007-1. 
 
   4(f)(92)         2    Intercreditor Agreement dated April 12, 2007 among the 
                         Company, CAC Warehouse Funding Corporation II, Credit 
                         Acceptance Funding LLC 2006-1, Credit Acceptance Auto 
                         Dealer Loan Trust 2006-1, Credit Acceptance Funding LLC 
                         2006-2, Credit Acceptance Auto Dealer Loan Trust 
                         2006-2, Credit Acceptance Funding LLC 2007-1, Credit 
                         Acceptance Auto Dealer Loan Trust 2007-1, Wachovia 
                         Capital Markets, LLC, as agent, The Bank of New York 
                         (as successor-in-interest to the corporate trust 
                         business of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.), as agent, 
                         Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as agent, Wells 
                         Fargo Bank, National Association, as agent, Comerica 
                         Bank, as agent. 
 
   10(d)(10)        4    Form of Purchase Program Agreement as of March 2007. 
 
   10(q)(4)         3    Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement dated 
                         February 22, 2007. 
 
   10(q)(5)         3    Credit Acceptance Corporation Restricted Stock Unit 
                         Award Agreement dated February 22, 2007. 
 
   31(a)            4    Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant 
                         to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
                         1934. 
 
   31(b)            4    Certification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 
                         Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
 
   32(a)            4    Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 
                         18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and Rule 13a-14(b) of the 
                         Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
 
   32(b)            4    Certification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 
                         18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and Rule 13a-14(b) of the 
                         Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
 
 
 



1     Previously filed as an exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 
      8-K, dated February 9, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
2     Previously filed as an exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 
      8-K, dated April 12, 2007. 
 
3     Previously filed as an exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 
      8-K, dated February 22, 2007, and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
4     Filed herewith. 
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                                                                 EXHIBIT 10(d)10 
 
                           PURCHASE PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
 
                                    RECITALS 
 
                                                               Dealor Lot Number 
                                                               ----------------- 
 
RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, Credit Acceptance Corporation ("Credit Acceptance") is an indirect 
consumer finance company that accepts assignment of Contracts; 
 
WHEREAS ____________________________________________________________(hereinafter 
"Dealer") is a automobile dealership licensed to sell motor vehicles and/or 
light trucks to consumers at the sales location stated at the end of this 
Agreement. As part of the Dealer's business it regularly sells vehicles to 
consumers on credit. 
 
WHEREAS, Dealer desires to sell Contracts to Credit Acceptance under the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
WHEREAS, Credit Acceptance agrees to purchase Contracts submitted in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this 
Agreement, the parties agree as follows 
 
                                    ARTICLE 1 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
Whenever used in this Agreement, the following words and phrases, unless 
otherwise stated, shall have the following meanings: 
 
"ACTUAL CASH VALUE" means the net cash value, with no over allowance, of the 
vehicle traded in by Obligor as Down Payment towards the purchase of a Financed 
Vehicle. 
 
"AGREEMENT" means this Purchase Program Agreement whereby Dealer can sell 
Contracts to Credit Acceptance. 
 
"CAPS" refers to any Internet based credit approval processing system that 
Credit Acceptance may make available to Dealer. 
 
"CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION" means all confidential and/or secret information 
concerning Credit Acceptance including, but not limited to, this Agreement, the 
Program, Credit Acceptance Property, Documentation, customer lists, dealer 
lists, obligor personal identifiable information, and all information developed 
by and/or for Credit Acceptance and/or its affiliates, whether now owned or 
hereafter obtained, concerning plans, marketing and sales methods, information 
systems and Internet processes (including CAPS), customer relationships, 
materials, and procedures utilized by Credit Acceptance and/or its affiliates, 
business forms, costs, prices, suppliers, information concerning past, present 
or future contractors, representatives and past, present and/or future customers 
of Credit Acceptance and/or its affiliates, plans for development of new or 
existing products, services and expansion into new areas or markets, internal 
operations and any variations, trade secrets, proprietary information and other 
confidential information of any type together with all written, graphic, video 
and other materials relating to all or any part of the same. Confidential 
Information shall not include any information (a) which has been published or 
became part of the public domain other than by acts or omissions of the Dealer 
in violation of this Agreement, (b) was in the possession of the Dealer at the 
time of disclosure to Credit Acceptance, (c) was received by Dealer from a third 
party who had a lawful right to disclose such information, (d) was independently 
developed by Dealer, or (e) is required by applicable law, rule, regulation or 
order to be disclosed to a third party. To the extent that the Dealer is 
compelled to disclose Confidential Information to a third party, it agrees to 
provide Credit Acceptance reasonable notice of the pending disclosure so that 
Credit Acceptance can take any action it deems necessary and appropriate with 
respect to the disclosure. 
 
"CONTRACT" means a retail installment or conditional sales contract, promissory 
note, and security agreement that evidence an Obligors agreement to purchase a 
Financed Vehicle over time. 
 
"CONTRACT FILES" means all writings, including, but not limited to, an executed 
copy of the Contract, credit application, privacy disclosure, discount 



disclosure and all documents used to establish Obligor's proof of residency, 
proof of employment or proof of insurance; and all other documents required by 
Credit Acceptance relating to the sale, purchase and financing of a Financed 
Vehicle. 
 
"CREDIT ACCEPTANCE PROPERTY" means all tangible and intangible property owned by 
Credit Acceptance, including, but not limited to Company names, trademarks and 
copyrighted material including names, logos, slogans and service marks, 
Documentation, signs, brochures, posters or other tangible or intangible 
property relating to the Program, whether registered or unregistered. CREDIT 
ACCEPTANCE WE CHANGE LIVES! (and Design); WE CHANGE LIVES!; the Check Box 
Design; and ASK OTTO (and Design) are registered service marks owned by Credit 
Acceptance Corporation. ASK ABOUT OUR GUARANTEED CREDIT APPROVAL (and Design), 
and OTTO (and Design) marks, are trademarks or service marks owned by Credit 
Acceptance Corporation. 
 
"DOCUMENTATION" means all operational and procedural literature created and 
offered by Credit Acceptance that relates to or affects the Program, (including 
all CAPS screen shots and other CAPS content) and shall include all updates, new 
releases, improvements or derivative works provided to Dealer from time to time. 
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"DOWN PAYMENT" means the amount of "cash" plus the Actual Cash Value of any 
"trade" paid by an Obligor with respect to the purchase of a Financed Vehicle. 
 
"EFFECTIVE DATE" means the execution date of this Agreement as written on the 
signature page hereof. 
 
"FINANCED VEHICLE" means an automobile or light truck, together with all 
accessions thereto, securing an Obligor's indebtedness under a Contract. 
 
"OBLIGOR" means the purchaser or the co-purchaser of a Financed Vehicle or any 
other Person who owes payments under the Contract. 
 
"PROGRAM" means the financing program offered by Credit Acceptance to Dealers 
whereby Dealers can offer financing to consumers with limited access to credit. 
 
"PURCHASED CONTRACT" means a Contract that Credit Acceptance has purchased from 
Dealer in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
"PURCHASE PRICE" means the amount of money that Credit Acceptance will pay for a 
Contract from time to time. 
 
"QUALIFYING CONTRACT" means a Contract that meets the following specifications: 
 
(i) it has not been rescinded; is not in default; is owned by Dealer free and 
clear of all liens, claims, options, encumbrances and security interests (other 
than the security interest in favor of Credit Acceptance) and is in all other 
respects to the best of the Dealer's knowledge a valid, binding and enforceable 
obligation of the Obligor at the time the Contract is to be assigned to Credit 
Acceptance; 
 
(ii) it complied at the time it was originated or made, and is currently in 
compliance in all respects, with all requirements of applicable federal, state 
and local laws and regulations thereunder, including, usury laws, the Federal 
Truth-in-Lending Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Credit Billing 
Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, the 
Federal Trade Commission Act, the Magnuson - Moss Warranty Act, 
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, Title V, The Patriot Act, Federal Reserve Board 
Regulations B, M and Z, state adaptations of the National Consumer Act, the 
Uniform Commercial Code and of the Uniform Consumer Credit Code and any other 
consumer credit or equal opportunity disclosure; 
 
(iii) that the Dealer has used its best efforts to make certain that the 
identity of the Obligor is accurate; 
 
(iv) Dealer has taken all the steps required by law to enable the Obligor to 
register and title the Financed Vehicle in his/her name, and has taken all the 
steps necessary to insure that Credit Acceptance has a first and prior perfected 
security interest in the Financed Vehicle securing the performance of the 
Obligor under the Contract; 
 
(v) Dealer verified at delivery the Financed Vehicle was adequately insured with 
a policy or policies covering damages, destruction, and theft and such policies 
name Credit Acceptance as a loss payee; 
 
(vi) Dealer has delivered the motor vehicle and the motor vehicle satisfied all 
warranties, express or implied, made to the Obligor; and 
 
(vii) all amounts to be paid by the Obligor at the time of closing have in fact 
been paid and the Down Payment disclosed on the credit application and Contract 
are consistent and the Down Payment is made in accordance with Section 4.01 (a) 
of this Agreement. 
 
(viii) Dealer has not made any charge, including documentary or processing 
charges, which Dealer does not make in a cash transaction other than amounts 
disclosed as finance charges, insurance and filing fees or other costs paid to 
public officials to perfect Credit Acceptance's lien in a Financed Vehicle. 
 
                                   ARTICLE II 
 
SUBMISSION OF CONTRACTS 
 
2.01 PROCEDURES 
 
(a) Dealer may submit Contracts to Credit Acceptance for purchase under the 
terms of this Agreement. Submission of such a Contract to Credit Acceptance 
constitutes a representation and warranty by Dealer that such Contract complies 
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Dealer acknowledges that Credit 



Acceptance in under no obligation to purchase any Contract at any time and may 
discontinue purchasing Contracts at any time at Credit Acceptance's sole 
discretion. 
 
(b) If Credit Acceptance issues an approval number with respect to a Contract, 
Dealer shall deliver the Contract Files to Credit Acceptance and assign such 
Contract and Dealer's security interest in the Financed Vehicle to Credit 
Acceptance. Upon the request of Credit Acceptance, Dealer will furnish Credit 
Acceptance with any additional powers of attorney and other documents that 
Credit Acceptance deems necessary or appropriate to enable Credit Acceptance to 
further perfect its interests in a Purchased Contract or Financed Vehicle. 
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Absent Default as set forth in Article V, the assignment is without recourse to 
the general assets of Dealer. Dealer is not a guarantor of a Contract that has 
been assigned to Credit Acceptance. As such, Dealer is not entitled to receive 
any statutory notices concerning Credit Acceptance's collection of a Contract, 
such as a post repossession notice (Uniform Commercial Code) or any other 
statutory notice. 
 
(c) Credit Acceptance's issuance of an approval number shall not be deemed to be 
acceptance of a Contract for purchase hereunder. Acceptance of a Contract shall 
occur only at such time as Credit Acceptance receives and approves the related 
Contract Files and delivers the Purchase Price in accordance with Article III of 
this Agreement. 
 
(d) If Credit Acceptance purchases a Contract it shall be deemed a Purchased 
Contract under this Agreement and property of Credit Acceptance. Credit 
Acceptance is hereby authorized and empowered to endorse Dealer's name on any 
payments made payable to Dealer provided that payment relates to a Purchased 
Contract. Credit Acceptance is also authorized to execute and deliver, in Credit 
Acceptance's own name, any and all instruments of satisfaction or cancellation, 
or of partial or full release or discharge, and all other comparable 
instruments, with respect to the Purchased Contract or to the Financed Vehicles. 
 
(e) Upon early termination of a Purchased Contract, Dealer understands that the 
Obligor may be entitled to a refund of an amount equal to the unused portion of 
any premium collected by Dealer or otherwise received by Dealer in connection 
with the sale of any ancillary product, including GAP products, property 
insurance, credit life and credit life accident and health insurance, and 
warranty or service contracts. Any refund will be calculated in accordance with 
the product policy or as required by applicable law. Dealer will pay any refund 
in its possession to Credit Acceptance or Obligor as directed by Credit 
Acceptance. 
 
(f) Dealer understands that a factor in determining the Purchase Price offered 
by Credit Acceptance as set forth in Section 3.01 is, among other things, the 
historical collection performance of all Contracts ever assigned to Credit 
Acceptance under this Agreement, or any other agreement it has with Credit 
Acceptance. As such, Dealer is encouraged to monitor the collection performance 
of the Contracts and to communicate information to Credit Acceptance, including 
location information on Obligors, to the extent that Dealer believes that the 
information will assist Credit Acceptance in the collection of a Purchased 
Contract. 
 
(g) If an Obligor makes any payments due under a Contract to Dealer after the 
Contract has been purchased by Credit Acceptance under this Agreement, Dealer 
will immediately notify Credit Acceptance that the payment was received and 
shall immediately forward the payment to Credit Acceptance. 
 
                                   ARTICLE III 
 
PURCHASE PRICE 
 
3.01 PURCHASE OF CONTRACTS 
 
(a) If Credit Acceptance approves a Contract in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 2.01 of this Agreement, Credit Acceptance will pay the Dealer the 
Purchase Price, said Purchase Price determined by the applicable funding program 
in use and offered by Credit Acceptance to Dealer at the time the Contract is 
submitted to Credit Acceptance. 
 
(b) Dealer acknowledges that the Purchase Price encompasses the entire payment 
it is to receive from Credit Acceptance for the purchase of a Contract. Once 
Credit Acceptance tenders the Purchase Price to Dealer, the Contract shall 
become a Purchased Contract and all the Dealers rights, title and interests in 
the Contract and the Financed Vehicle become the exclusive property of Credit 
Acceptance. 
 
                                   ARTICLE IV 
 
DEALER REPRESENTATIONS 
 
4.01 DEALER REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
 
Dealer makes the following representations on which Credit Acceptance is relying 
in entering into this Agreement with Dealer, and each request by Dealer to 
Credit Acceptance to purchase a Contract under Agreement will act as a 
reaffirmation that each Contract is a Qualifying Contract and the following 
representations: 



 
(a) DOWN PAYMENT. Dealer understands that the amount of Down Payment paid by the 
Obligor is an integral element of the Program and that Dealer must not 
misrepresent the amount of the Down Payment paid by the Obligor in connection 
with the purchase of a Financed Vehicle. To the extent that Dealer accepts a 
vehicle in trade towards, in whole or in part, the Obligor's Down Payment, 
Dealer agrees to apply only the Actual Cash Value of that vehicle to the trade 
in amount. Dealer agrees to disclose on credit applications any and all rebates 
and source of Down Payment, if known by Dealer. Dealer warrants not to purchase 
any item, transfer funds, include any post dated checks, rebates, side notes or 
installment notes to Obligor for use as Down Payment or for any other reason 
related to purchase, and that the Down Payment has been collected in full prior 
to assignment to Credit Acceptance; 
 
(b) ORGANIZATION IN GOOD STANDING. Dealer is duly organized and is validly 
existing as a legal entity (corporation, partnership, sole 
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proprietor, LLC, etc.) and is in good standing under the laws of the state in 
which it operates, with full power and authority to own its properties and to 
conduct its business, and had at all relevant times, and shall have power, 
authority, and legal right to execute and sell Contracts to Credit Acceptance. 
Dealer is duly qualified to do business and has obtained all necessary licenses 
and approvals in all jurisdictions in which the ownership or lease of property 
or the conduct of its business requires such qualification. The individual 
signing this Agreement on behalf of Dealer has the power and authority to 
execute and deliver this Agreement and to carry out its terms and the execution 
on behalf of Dealer; 
 
(c) BINDING OBLIGATIONS. This Agreement constitutes a legal, valid, and binding 
obligation of Dealer enforceable in accordance with its terms; 
 
(d) BROKERS AND FINDERS. Before submitting any Contract to Credit Acceptance, 
Dealer will disclose to Credit Acceptance any agreement it has to pay any 
brokerage fees, agent commissions, finders fees, or "bird dog" fees in 
connection with the transactions contemplated herein; and 
 
(e) NON-RELIANCE. Dealer has independently and without reliance upon Credit 
Acceptance, and based on such documents and information as it has deemed 
appropriate, made its own appraisal of and investigation into the financial 
condition and creditworthiness of each Obligor and made its own decision to 
enter into a Contract with such Obligor. 
 
                                    ARTICLE V 
 
TERM, TERMINATION, AND DEFAULT 
 
5.01 TERM 
 
This Agreement shall remain in effect from the Effective Date until terminated 
in accordance with the terms set forth below. 
 
5.02 TERMINATION BY DEALER OR CREDIT ACCEPTANCE 
 
The Dealer can cease submitting Contracts to Credit Acceptance at any time. 
Credit Acceptance may terminate this Agreement with respect to acceptance of all 
future Contracts at any time. 
 
5.03 DEFAULT 
 
Dealer understands the importance of assigning only those Contracts to Credit 
Acceptance that are in compliance with applicable law and are otherwise in 
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. To the extent that 
Credit Acceptance discovers that a Contract assigned to Credit Acceptance 
violates applicable law or violates a terms of this Agreement, Dealer, within 30 
days after notice of the violation by Credit Acceptance, shall cure the 
violation. If the violation cannot be cured as a matter of law; or if the Dealer 
does not cure the violation within 30 days notice; Dealer agrees to repurchase 
the subject Contract from Credit Acceptance. If Dealer is required to repurchase 
a Contract in accordance with this Section 5.03, the following shall occur: 
 
(a)  Dealer shall 
 
     (i)  Pay Credit Acceptance a $500 termination fee plus one of the following 
          amounts: 
 
          a.   For a pre-computed Contract, the gross balance then owing on the 
               Contract, including any amount advanced to purchase insurance or 
               to the otherwise preserve the Financed Vehicle or Credit 
               Acceptance's interest therein because the Obligor has failed to 
               perform all of his, her or its obligations under the Contract, 
               less the amount of any unearned finance charges or, insurance 
               premium, calculated as provided in the Contract through the date 
               of payment by Dealer. 
 
          b.   For a Simple Interest Contract, the amount then owed by the 
               Obligor under the Contract, which amount shall equal the then 
               unpaid principal balance, including any amount added to the 
               principal balance because Credit Acceptance has purchased 
               insurance or expended funds to preserve the Financed Vehicle or 
               Credit Acceptance's interest therein because the Obligor has 
               failed to perform all of his, her or its obligations under the 
               Contract, plus any accrued but unpaid interest through the date 
               of payment by Dealer, less the amount of any unearned insurance 
               premium. 



 
     (ii) Reimburse Credit Acceptance for any collection or repossession 
          expenses, including the return of customer payments and payment of 
          attorney's fees in connection with a Contract to be repurchased by 
          Dealer. 
 
(b)  Credit Acceptance will, upon receipt of all amounts due under this Section 
     5.03, re-assign the Contract to Dealer and will execute the necessary 
     documentation transferring Credit Acceptance's lien in the Financed Vehicle 
     to Dealer. 
 
(c)  Dealer agrees to defend, indemnify, protect, save, keep, and hold Credit 
     Acceptance and its affiliates, and their respective shareholders, 
     directors, officers, employees, representatives, agents, servants, 
     successors and assigns harmless from and against any and all, claims, 
     losses, liabilities, damages, injuries, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees, 
     court costs and other amounts arising out of or resulting from any 
     collection or servicing activities on any Contracts that take place by any 
     party other than Credit Acceptance after the Contracts have been 
     re-assigned to Dealer in accordance with this Section 5.03. 
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5.04 EFFECT OF TERMINATION 
 
Sections 2.01 (e) and (g); 5.03 and Article VI shall survive termination of this 
Agreement. 
 
                                   ARTICLE VI 
 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
6.01 GOVERNING LAW 
 
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Michigan and the obligations, rights, and remedies of the parties under this 
Agreement shall be determined in accordance with such laws. 
 
6.02 NOTICES 
 
All demands, notices, and communications under this Agreement shall be in 
writing, personally delivered or mailed by first-class mail. Notices to Dealer 
shall be sent to the corporate address specified on the last page of this 
Agreement. Notices to Credit Acceptance shall be sent to the following address: 
Credit Acceptance, Attention Dealer Notices, P.O. Box 5070, Southfield, MI 
48086-5070. Either party may change this address upon written notice to the 
other party. All notices shall be deemed received on the fifth day following 
deposit with the U.S. Mail, certified or registered, postage pre-paid and 
addressed as set forth in this Section 6.02. 
 
6.03 SEVERABILITY OF PROVISIONS; UNENFORCEABILITY 
 
If any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement shall be for any reason 
whatsoever held invalid, then such provisions shall be deemed severable from the 
remaining provisions of this Agreement or the rights of the Dealer or Credit 
Acceptance. If for any reason a court determines that any part of any of the 
provisions of this Agreement is unreasonable in scope or otherwise 
unenforceable, such provision(s) will be deemed modified and fully enforceable, 
as so modified, to the extent determined by the court to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 
 
6.04 CONFIDENTIALITY 
 
Except as required for Dealer to conduct its regular daily business with Credit 
Acceptance, Dealer shall not at anytime, disclose, disseminate, transfer and/or 
use, or permit anyone else to disclose, disseminate, transfer and/or use, any 
Confidential Information of Credit Acceptance. Dealer acknowledges that the 
Confidential Information of Credit Acceptance is valuable, special and unique to 
Credit Acceptance's business and on which such business depends, and is 
proprietary to Credit Acceptance and its affiliates, and that Credit Acceptance 
has protected and wishes to continue to protect the Confidential Information by 
keeping it secret and confidential for the sole use and benefit of Credit 
Acceptance and its affiliates. Upon termination of this Agreement without the 
necessity of any request from Credit Acceptance, or at any other time Credit 
Acceptance may in writing so request, Dealer shall promptly deliver to Credit 
Acceptance all materials concerning any Confidential Information, copies thereof 
and any other materials of Credit Acceptance and/or its affiliates which are in 
Dealer's possession or under Dealer's control, and Dealer shall not make or 
retain any copy, draft or extract thereof which has been made at any time. The 
obligations of Dealer under this Section 6.04 shall survive the termination (for 
any reason) or breach of this Agreement. Dealer agrees that Credit Acceptance 
shall be entitled, as a matter of law, without the need to prove irreparable 
injury, to an injunction, restraining order or other equitable relief from any 
court of competent jurisdiction, restraining any violation or threatened 
violation of this Section 6.04 by Dealer. 
 
6.05 INDEMNIFICATION 
 
(a) Dealer will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Credit Acceptance from and 
against any and all costs, expenses, losses, damages, claims and liabilities 
(including attorneys' fees, and all expenses of litigation) arising out of or 
resulting from: 
 
          (i) any claims by the Obligor with respect to the condition or 
          operation of the Financed Vehicle and the purchase thereof; and the 
          preparation of the Contract assigned to Credit Acceptance; 
 
          (ii) any breach of any of the representations, warranties or 
          agreements made by Dealer in this Agreement; 
 



          (iii) any taxes that are the obligation of Dealer that may at any time 
          be asserted against Credit Acceptance with respect to the transactions 
          contemplated herein (other than taxes measured by the net income of 
          Credit Acceptance), including, without limitation any sales, gross 
          receipts, general corporation, tangible or intangible personal 
          property, privilege, or license taxes; and 
 
          (iv) if any insurance or extended service or warranty agreement 
          written in connection with any Contract is canceled and any unearned 
          or returned premium or charge is refunded to the Obligor by Dealer or 
          credited to Obligor by Dealer, Dealer agrees to pay the same amount to 
          Credit Acceptance. 
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(b) In the event that any claim, action, proceeding or lawsuit is brought 
against Dealer that seeks damages from Dealer based upon allegations that relate 
solely to the negligence of Credit Acceptance in the collection of a Contract, 
Credit Acceptance will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Dealer from and 
against any and all costs, expenses, losses, damages, claims and liabilities, 
including reasonable attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from that claim, 
action, proceeding or lawsuit. Dealer shall promptly notify Credit Acceptance in 
writing of such claim or threatened claim. Notice should be sent to the address 
contained in this Agreement. Credit Acceptance shall have complete control of 
the defense of said lawsuit and can, at its sole discretion, negotiate any 
settlement. Dealer shall have the right to be represented by counsel of its 
choice, at its own expense. Dealer shall not be entitled to any exemplary or 
punitive damages from or against Credit Acceptance. 
 
6.06 ARBITRATION 
 
Any disputes and differences arising between the parties in connection with or 
relating to this Agreement or the parties relationship with respect hereto shall 
be settled and finally determined by arbitration in accordance with the 
Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The 
arbitration shall be conducted by three arbitrators, one of whom shall be 
selected by Dealer, one selected by Credit Acceptance and the third by the two 
arbitrators so selected. Each party shall notify the other party of the 
arbitrators selected by it within 30 days of a written request from one party to 
the other for arbitration. In the event either party shall fail to select an 
arbitrator or fail to notify the other party of the arbitrator that it has 
selected within such time period, the arbitrator so selected by the other party 
shall select a second arbitrator. The decision and award of the arbitrators 
shall be in writing, and shall be final and binding upon the parties hereto. 
Judgment upon the award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof 
or any application may be made to such court for judicial acceptance of or award 
in order of enforcement, as the case may be. Claims brought by Credit Acceptance 
will be arbitrated in the state where Dealer is located. Claims brought by 
Dealer shall be brought in Oakland County Michigan. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Credit Acceptance shall be entitled to seek equitable relief under 
Section 6.04 of this Agreement, in any court of record in the state where the 
Dealer is located. 
 
6.07 RIGHTS CUMULATIVE / WAIVER/FORCE MAJEURE 
 
All rights and remedies from time to time conferred upon or reserved to Credit 
Acceptance are cumulative, and none is intended to be exclusive of another. No 
delay or omission in insisting upon the strict observance or performance of any 
provision of this Agreement, or in exercising any right or remedy, shall be 
construed as a waiver or relinquishment of such provision, nor shall it impair 
such right or remedy. Neither Credit Acceptance nor the Dealer shall be 
responsible for any failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement due 
to causes beyond its reasonable control, including but not limited to acts of 
God, war, riot, terrorism, acts of civil or military authorities, fire, floods 
or accidents. 
 
6.08 USAGE OF TERMS 
 
With respect to all terms in this Agreement, the singular includes the plural 
and the plural the singular; words importing any gender include the other 
genders; references to agreements and other contractual instruments include all 
subsequent amendments thereto or changes therein entered into in accordance with 
their respective terms and not prohibited by this Agreement; and the term 
"including" means "including without limitation". 
 
6.09 ASSIGNMENT 
 
This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of Credit Acceptance and the Dealer 
and each of their permitted successors and assigns. Notwithstanding anything in 
this Agreement to the contrary, the Dealer may not assign its rights under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of Credit Acceptance. 
 
6.10 MERGER OR CONSOLIDATION OF CREDIT ACCEPTANCE 
 
Any corporation into which Credit Acceptance may be merged or consolidated; 
which may result from any merger, conversion, or consolidation to which Credit 
Acceptance shall be a party; or which may succeed to the business of Credit 
Acceptance, shall be the successor to this Agreement without any further act on 
the part of any of the parties to this Agreement. 
 
6.11 AUDIT 
 



Dealer agrees to allow Credit Acceptance or its designee access, during regular 
business hours, but no more than once in any one calendar year, to audit 
Dealer's internal records relating to Contracts assigned to Credit Acceptance 
under this Agreement, including individual deal jackets, recap sheets, general 
ledger, bank statements, cash receipt books and journals, repair order, 
reconditioning reports and any other documents deemed necessary by Credit 
Acceptance for use in conducting its audit. 
 
6.12 NO FRANCHISE 
 
Nothing in this Agreement is intended to grant or grants to Dealer any right to 
offer, sell or distribute any products or services in the name of or on behalf 
of Credit Acceptance. Dealer is free to sell cars on cash or credit and to sell 
or assign the corresponding retail installment contract to any Person of its 
choice. 
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6.13 ANNOUNCEMENTS, TRADE MARKS, SERVICE MARKS, COPYRIGHT AND ADVERTISING 
 
Dealer will not issue any external announcements, press releases or advertising, 
whether verbal or written, in any way pertaining to the subject matter of this 
Agreement without first obtaining the prior written consent of Credit 
Acceptance. Neither Dealer nor Credit Acceptance shall use or refer to any name, 
mark, symbol or other trade identity of the other in any advertisement, press 
release or other communication without first obtaining the prior written consent 
of the other. Credit Acceptance hereby grants Dealer a non-exclusive, 
non-transferable right to use Credit Acceptance Property in the form and manner 
approved by Credit Acceptance. Dealer agrees to permit representatives of Credit 
Acceptance onto Dealer's premises during regular business hours to inspect 
Dealer's use of Credit Acceptance Property. Dealer agrees to not copy, modify, 
lease, license, sublicense, sell, assign, distribute, disclose or transfer 
Credit Acceptance Property, in whole or in part. Dealer shall not create any 
derivative work from, or adaptations of Credit Acceptance Property. Dealer will 
not apply to register any name, which includes Credit Acceptance Property as an 
Internet domain name without Credit Acceptance's written approval. Dealer agrees 
to change or discontinue the use of any Credit Acceptance Property upon request 
by Credit Acceptance. In the event that this Agreement is terminated; or if the 
Dealer ceases doing business; or at Credit Acceptance's request; Dealer agrees 
to immediately cease use of all Credit Acceptance Property in the operation of 
its business. Furthermore, Dealer agrees not to use, either directly or 
indirectly, any marks or symbols that are confusingly similar to Credit 
Acceptance Property in a manner that Credit Acceptance believes will confuse or 
deceive the public. 
 
6.14 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL 
 
In the event that Section 6.06 is found unenforceable, Dealer and Credit 
Acceptance after consulting or having had the opportunity to consult with 
counsel, knowingly, voluntarily and intentionally waives any right they may have 
to a trial by jury in any litigation based upon or arising out of this Agreement 
or any course of conduct, dealing, statements (whether oral or written), or 
actions of Dealer or Credit Acceptance. Dealer shall not seek to consolidate, by 
counterclaim or otherwise any such action in which a jury trial cannot be or has 
not been waived. 
 
6.15 CONTRACT FORMS AND CALCULATIONS 
 
Credit Acceptance may make available to Dealer state specific blank contract 
forms for each state in which Dealer operates. Dealer accepts these blank 
contract forms without warranty of any kind whatsoever from Credit Acceptance, 
including the implied warranty of merchantability. Dealer should satisfy itself 
that the blank contract forms and the computational information it places in the 
blank contract forms is accurate and in compliance with all applicable laws. If 
Dealer desires to use blank contract forms supplied by a different source, it 
must first receive written authorization from Credit Acceptance. 
 
6.16 INFORMATION SECURITY 
 
Dealer and Credit Acceptance each shall implement and maintain physical, 
electronic, and procedural safeguards as may be required from time to time to 
protect all information and data relating to the Obligors. Such safeguards 
shall, at a minimum, comply with applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations. 
 
6.17 INDEPENDENCE 
 
Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary elsewhere in this Agreement, 
Credit Acceptance is acting as an independent contractor, and shall have no 
duties or responsibilities, except those expressly set forth herein, or any 
fiduciary relationship with Dealer, and no implied covenants, functions, 
responsibilities, duties, obligations or liabilities shall be read into this 
Agreement or otherwise exist with respect to Credit Acceptance. Furthermore, 
Dealer, including without limitation, its employees and salespersons, have not 
represented to the public that it is an agent of Credit Acceptance; Credit 
Acceptance expressly disclaims any implied agency relationship with Dealer. 
 
6.18 COMPLETE AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement contains the complete agreement of the parties with respect to 
the purchase of Contracts and is intended to supersede and replace any other 
agreements (whether written or oral), with respect to the purchase of Contracts. 
Unless otherwise stated herein, this Agreement may not be altered or amended 
without the written consent of both parties. 
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                                                               DEALER LOT NUMBER 
                                                                      70J 
                                                               ----------------- 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE: ______________________________________ 
 
SECTION 1 (TO BE COMPLETED BY CREDIT ACCEPTANCE) 
CREDIT ACCEPTANCE CORPORATION 
 
By: _______________________________________________ 
 
Its: _______________________________________________ 
            (Title) 
 
SECTION 2 (TO BE COMPLETED BY DEALER) 
 
(Dealership 
Legal Name):  David Williams 
 
(D/B/A) or Assumed Name:  Select Auto Sales 
 
By: ______________________________________________ 
                    (Signature) 
 
By: ______________________________________________ 
                     (Print) 
 
Its: _____________________________________________ 
                    (Title) 
 
SECTION 3 (TO BE COMPLETED BY DEALER) 
DEALERSHIP'S SALES LOCATION 
 
STREET ADDRESS: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CITY: __________________________ STATE: _________________ ZIP: _________________ 
 
SECTION 4 (TO BE COMPLETED BY DEALER) 
DEALERSHIP'S CORPORATE ADDRESS 
[ ] CHECK IF SAME AS SALES LOCATION 
 
STREET ADDRESS: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
CITY: __________________________ STATE: _________________ ZIP: _________________ 
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                                                                  EXHIBIT 31 (a) 
 
              CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 
                  RULE 13A-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT 
 
I, Brett A. Roberts, certify that: 
 
     1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Credit Acceptance 
     Corporation; 
 
     2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement 
     of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
     statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
     were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this 
     report; 
 
     3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial 
     information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
     respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of 
     the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
 
     4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for 
     establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 
     in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal controls over 
     financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 
     15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 
 
          a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such 
          disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
          supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the 
          registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
          us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
          which this report is being prepared; 
 
          b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused 
          such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed under 
          our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
          reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
          statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
          accounting principles; 
 
          c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls 
          and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
          effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end 
          of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
 
          d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal 
          controls over financial reporting that occurred during the 
          registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, 
          or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's 
          internal controls over financial reporting; and 
 
     5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on 
     our most recent evaluation of internal controls over financial reporting, 
     to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's 
     board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 
 
          a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design 
          or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are 
          reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to 
          record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
 
          b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or 
          other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's 
          internal controls over financial reporting. 
 
April 30, 2007 
/s/ Brett A. Roberts 
- ----------------------- 
Chief Executive Officer 
 
 



 
 
                                                                  EXHIBIT 31 (b) 
 
              CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 
                  RULE 13A-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT 
 
I, Kenneth S. Booth, certify that: 
 
     1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Credit Acceptance 
     Corporation; 
 
     2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement 
     of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
     statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
     were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this 
     report; 
 
     3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial 
     information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
     respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of 
     the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
 
     4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for 
     establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 
     in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal controls over 
     financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 
     15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 
 
          a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such 
          disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
          supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the 
          registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to 
          us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
          which this report is being prepared; 
 
          b) Designed such internal controls over financial reporting, or caused 
          such internal controls over financial reporting to be designed under 
          our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
          reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
          statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
          accounting principles; 
 
          c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls 
          and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
          effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end 
          of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
 
          d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal 
          controls over financial reporting that occurred during the 
          registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, 
          or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's 
          internal controls over financial reporting; and 
 
     5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on 
     our most recent evaluation of internal controls over financial reporting, 
     to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's 
     board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 
 
          a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design 
          or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are 
          reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to 
          record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
 
          b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or 
          other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's 
          internal controls over financial reporting. 
 
 
April 30, 2007 
/s/ Kenneth S. Booth 
- ----------------------- 
Chief Financial Officer 
 
 



 
 
                                                                  EXHIBIT 32 (a) 
 
                            CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
                             18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
                             AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
                  SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
 
     In connection with the Quarterly Report of Credit Acceptance Corporation 
(the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2007 as filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, 
Brett A. Roberts, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002, that: 
 
     (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the 
     Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 
 
     (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all 
     material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
     Company. 
 
                                               /s/ Brett A. Roberts 
                                               --------------------------------- 
                                               Chief Executive Officer 
                                               April 30, 2007 
 
 



 
 
                                                                  EXHIBIT 32 (b) 
 
                            CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
                             18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
                             AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
                  SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
 
     In connection with the Quarterly Report of Credit Acceptance Corporation 
(the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2007 as filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, 
Kenneth S. Booth, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002, that: 
 
     (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the 
     Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 
 
     (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all 
     material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 
     Company. 
 
                                               /s/ Kenneth S. Booth 
                                               --------------------------------- 
                                               Chief Financial Officer 
                                               April 30, 2007 
 
 
 


